






2018-01C 

 

 

- 1 - 

AGREEMENT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT for Professional Services ("Agreement") is made as of the Agreement Date set 

forth below by and between Sierra County Office of Education, ("the COUNTY"), and Janis Hardeman,  

("CONTRACTOR"). 

In consideration of the services to be rendered, the sums to be paid, and each and every covenant 

and condition contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

1. SERVICES.  

The CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR has the special skills, expertise and experience in order 

to effectively provide school nurse services. CONTRACTOR shall provide the services described in Attachment 

"A" and in the manner specified in Attachment "A", Provisions A-2 through A-3. 

2. TERM. 

Commencement Date: August 15, 2017 

Termination Date: June 30, 2018 

3.  PAYMENT. 

COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement on a time and 

material basis and in the amount set forth in Attachment "B". The payment specified in Attachment "B" shall be 

the only payment made to CONTRACTOR for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. CONTRACTOR 

shall submit all billings for said services to COUNTY in the manner specified in Attachment "B". 

4. FACILITIES, EQUIPMENT AND OTHER MATERIALS AND OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, furnish all facilities, equipment, and other 

materials which may be required for furnishing services pursuant to this Agreement, except as provided in 

this paragraph. COUNTY shall furnish CONTRACTOR only those facilities, equipment, and other materials 

and shall perform those obligations listed in Attachment "A". 

5. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS. 

Those additional provisions unique to this Agreement are set forth in Attachment "C". 

6. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

The general provisions set forth in Attachment "D" are part of this Agreement. Any inconsistency 

between said general provisions and any other terms or conditions of this Agreement shall be controlled by the 

other terms or conditions insofar as the latter are inconsistent with the general provisions. 

 

7. DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES. 

The Superintendent is the designated representative of the COUNTY, and will administer this Agreement 

for the COUNTY. Janis Hardeman is the authorized representative for CONTRACTOR. Changes in designated 

representatives shall occur only by advance written notice to the other party.  



2018-01C 

 

 

- 2 - 

 

8. ATTACHMENTS. 

All attachments referred to herein are attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. 

Attachments include: 

Attachment A - Services 

Attachment B - Payment 

Attachment C - Additional Provisions 

Attachment D - General Provisions  

 

9. AGREEMENT DATE. The Agreement Date is July 1, 2017. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day here first above written. 

 

 

"COUNTY"      “CONTRACTOR” 

 

 

 

 

By:_______________________________   By: _________________________________ 

  Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D., Superintendent          Janis Hardeman                      

 

 

 

 _______________________________          _________________________________ 

Date              Date  

 

 

 

CONTRACTOR TAXPAYER I.D. NUMBER  

 

____________________________________                

(Taxpayer I.D. or Social Security No.) 

 

  



2018-01C 

 

 

- 3 - 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

A.1.  SCOPE OF SERVICES AND DUTIES. 

 At the request of Sierra County Office of Education, CONTRACTOR shall include, but is not limited to, 

 provide scoliosis, vision and hearing screening at all schools for children as required by law, send referrals to 

parents/guardian and follow-up as needed 

 provide general education health file updates and maintain confidential health list 

 Immunizations for 7th graders and kindergarten  tracking and reporting as required by law 

 oversee health policies and update per new regulations 

 assist with materials for puberty training  

 deal with injuries at school and hygiene issues 

 monitoring and train staff as required for student administered medications 

 complete Healthy Kids Survey  

 assist with students 504 health care plans 

 provide special  education initial health and development report and annual follow-ups 

 inform district office of health supplies needed to keep classrooms and nurses office sufficiently equipped  

 provide follow up and additional services relating to your professional expertise as requested  

 other nursing duties as directed by the Superintendent or designee. 

A.2. MANNER SERVICES ARE TO BE PERFORMED. 

As an independent contractor, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing services and fulfilling   

obligations hereunder in a professional manner. COUNTY shall not control the manner of performance. 

A.3. FACILITIES FURNISHED BY COUNTY. 

 Copies of existing records and supporting documentation as necessary to perform all work 

 

 As approved by County Superintendent, provide materials as required for direct services in accordance 

with the student IEP and to conduct vision and  hearing student evaluations  

 



2018-01C 

 

 

- 4 - 

ATTACHMENT B 

PAYMENT 

COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR as follows: 

B.1 BASE CONTRACT FEE, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR for work performed, at the rate of $50 per 

hour, maximum $25,000 through June 30, 2018. CONTRACTOR shall submit requests for payment ("Invoice") 

on a monthly basis, invoicing for all work completed and delivered to the Superintendent, or designee prior to 

the issuance of such Invoice. In no event shall total compensation paid for services to CONTRACTOR under 

this Agreement exceed $25,000 without a written amendment to this Agreement approved by the County 

Superintendent. 

B.2 MILEAGE. County vehicle is available for use by CONTRACTOR and should be reserved in advance. If the 

county vehicle is unavailable the CONTRACTOR will be reimbursed at current IRS mileage rate. 

B.3 CONFERENCE. Reimburse for health services and school nurse annual conference. $2,000 Maximum for 

reimbursement. This is in addition to maximum contracted services of $25,000. 

B.4 AUTHORIZATION REQUIRED.  Services performed by CONTRACTOR and not authorized in this 

Agreement shall not be paid for by COUNTY. Payment for additional services shall be made to 

CONTRACTOR by COUNTY if, and only if, this Agreement is amended in writing by both parties in advance 

of performing additional services. 

B.5 SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES. None 

B.6  MAXIMUM CONTRACT AMOUNT. The maximum amount payable to CONTRACTOR under this 

 Agreement shall not exceed the following: 

B. 1 Base Contract Fee  $50.00 per hour 

B.2 Mileage   0 

B.3 Travel Costs  $2,000.00 

B.4 Authorization Required 0 

B.5 Special Circumstances 0 

MAXIMUM CONTRACT AMOUNT:  $25,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2018-03C 

 

2018_03c_mckurtis_speechC 

- 1 - 

AGREEMENT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT for Professional Services ("Agreement") is made as of the Agreement Date set 

forth below by and between Sierra County Office of Education, ("the COUNTY"), and Barbara J. McKurtis, 

("CONTRACTOR"). 

In consideration of the services to be rendered, the sums to be paid, and each and every covenant 

and condition contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

1. SERVICES. 

The CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR has the special skills, expertise and experience in order 

to effectively provide student speech, language and hearing services. CONTRACTOR shall provide the services 

described in Attachment "A" and in the manner specified in Attachment "A", Provisions A-2 through A-3. 

2. TERM. 

Commencement Date: July 1, 2017 

Termination Date: June 30, 2018 

3.  PAYMENT. 

COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement on a time and 

material basis and in the amount set forth in Attachment "B". The payment specified in Attachment "B" shall be 

the only payment made to CONTRACTOR for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. CONTRACTOR 

shall submit all billings for said services to COUNTY in the manner specified in Attachment "B". 

4. FACILITIES, EQUIPMENT AND OTHER MATERIALS AND OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, furnish all facilities, equipment, and other 

materials which may be required for furnishing services pursuant to this Agreement, except as provided in 

this paragraph. COUNTY shall furnish CONTRACTOR only those facilities, equipment, and other materials 

and shall perform those obligations listed in Attachment "A". 

5. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS. 

Those additional provisions unique to this Agreement are set forth in Attachment "C". 

6. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

The general provisions set forth in Attachment "D" are part of this Agreement. Any inconsistency 

between said general provisions and any other terms or conditions of this Agreement shall be controlled by the 

other terms or conditions insofar as the latter are inconsistent with the general provisions. 

 

7. DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES. 

The Superintendent is the designated representative of the COUNTY, and will administer this Agreement 

for the COUNTY. Barbara J. McKurtis is the authorized representative for CONTRACTOR. Changes in 

designated representatives shall occur only by advance written notice to the other party.  



2018-03C 

 

2018_03c_mckurtis_speechC 

- 2 - 

 

8. ATTACHMENTS. 

All attachments referred to herein are attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. 

Attachments include: 

Attachment A - Services 

Attachment B - Payment 

Attachment C - Additional Provisions 

Attachment D - General Provisions  

Attachment E - Form of Invoice 

 

9. AGREEMENT DATE. The Agreement Date is July 1, 2017. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date indicated below.  

 

"COUNTY"      “CONTRACTOR” 

 

 

 

 

By:_______________________________   By: _________________________________ 

  Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D., Superintendent          Barbara J. McKurtis, MS CCC SLP                    

 

 

 

Date:  July 1, 2017     Date:  July 1, 2017 

 

 

 

CONTRACTOR TAXPAYER I.D. NUMBER  

 

 

____________________________________                

(Taxpayer I.D. or Social Security No.) 

 

  



2018-03C 

 

2018_03c_mckurtis_speechC 

- 3 - 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

A.1.  SCOPE OF SERVICES AND DUTIES. 

 At the request of Sierra County Office of Education, CONTRACTOR shall include, but is not limited to, 

• provide student speech, language and hearing screening for children and young adults ages 0-22 

• provide individual and small group speech and language therapy to eligible students, schedule caseloads and 

prepare lesson plans 

• conduct speech, language and hearing assessment of referred students for initial evaluation and triennial reviews  

•  provide written documentation/reports for the purpose of diagnostic and treatment recommendations 

• recommend time and duration of student speech, language, hearing services; comply with services stated in the 

student IEP 

• attend IEP meetings, parent conferences and site meetings as required 

• keep accurate records of student attendance, behavior and all information relative to student receiving services 

• consult with outside agencies to obtain student information and formulate appropriate programs and services  

• provide follow up and additional services relating to your professional expertise as requested  

• other duties as directed by the Superintendent or designee. 

A.2. TIME SERVICES RENDERED. 

Work will begin July 3, 2017, and upon execution of this Agreement by the COUNTY. Thereafter, 

CONTRACTOR shall perform services in a diligent and timely manner. 

A.3. MANNER SERVICES ARE TO BE PERFORMED. 

As an independent contractor, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing services and fulfilling   

obligations hereunder in a professional manner. COUNTY shall not control the manner of performance. 

A.4. FACILITIES FURNISHED BY COUNTY. 

• Copies of existing records and supporting documentation as necessary to perform all work 

 

• As approved by County Superintendent, provide materials as required for direct services in accordance 

with the student IEP and to conduct speech, language and hearing student evaluations  

 



2018-06C 

AGREEMENT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT for Professional Services ("Agreement") is made as of the Agreement Date 

set forth below by and between the Sierra County Office of Education, ("the COUNTY"), and Jane Lee, the 

("CONTRACTOR"). 

In consideration of the services to be rendered, the sums to be paid, and each and every 

covenant and condition contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

1. SERVICES. 

The CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR has the special skills, expertise and experience 

in order to effectively provide individual and/or group counseling services. CONTRACTOR shall provide 

the services described in Attachment "A", and in the manner specified in Attachment "A", Provisions A-2 

through A-3. 

2. TERM. 

Commencement Date: September 5, 2017 

Termination Date: June 8, 2018 

3.  PAYMENT. 

COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement on a time 

and material basis and in the amount set forth in Attachment "B". The payment specified in Attachment 

"B" shall be the only payment made to CONTRACTOR for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 

CONTRACTOR shall submit all billings for said services to COUNTY in the manner specified in 

Attachment "B". 

4. FACILITIES, EQUIPMENT AND OTHER MATERIALS AND OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, furnish all facilities, equipment, and other 

materials which may be required for furnishing services pursuant to this Agreement, except as provided 

in this paragraph.  COUNTY shall furnish CONTRACTOR only those facilities, equipment, and other 

materials and shall perform those obligations listed in Attachment "A". 

5. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS. 

Those additional provisions unique to this Agreement are set forth in Attachment "C". 

6. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

The general provisions set forth in Attachment "D" are part of this Agreement. Any inconsistency 

between said general provisions and any other terms or conditions of this Agreement shall be controlled by 

the other terms or conditions insofar as the latter are inconsistent with the general provisions. 

 

7. DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES. 

Dr. Merrill M. Grant, County Superintendent, is the designated representative of the COUNTY, and 

will administer this Agreement for the COUNTY. Jane Lee, MFT, is the authorized representative for 

CONTRACTOR. Changes in designated representatives shall occur only by advance written notice to the 

other party. 



2 
 

8. ATTACHMENTS. 

All attachments referred to herein are attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 

herein. Attachments include: 

Attachment A - Services 

Attachment B - Payment 

Attachment C - Additional Provisions 

Attachment D - General Provisions  

Attachment E - Form of Invoice 

 

9. AGREEMENT DATE. The Agreement Date is September 5, 2017. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day here below 

written. 

"COUNTY"      “CONTRACTOR” 

By:_______________________________   By: _________________________________ 

Dr. Merrill M. Grant                  Date                 Jane Lee, MFT                       Date 

County Superintendent 

 

 

CONTRACTOR TAXPAYER I.D. NUMBER  

 

 

 

____________________________________                

(Taxpayer I.D. or Social Security No.) 

 

  



3 
 

ATTACHMENT A 

A.1. SCOPE OF SERVICES AND DUTIES. 

At the request of Sierra County Office of Education, duties of the CONTRACTOR shall include, but are not limited 

to, 

 Provide individual and group therapy. 

 Work in collaboration with school personnel as designated by the school site administrator or superintendent. 

 Maintain professional license and malpractice insurance as per the General Provisions, D.5. 

 Facilitate a therapy group for junior high or high school girls if requested by school site administrator. 

 Provide six (6) hours of clinical services for youth per week; documentation not to exceed maximum contract 

amount of $19,200.  

 Turn in invoice monthly. 

A.2. TIME SERVICES RENDERED. 

Work will begin on date identified in Provision 2, “TERM”, of this Agreement. Thereafter, CONTRACTOR 

shall perform services in a diligently and timely manner. 

A.3. MANNER SERVICES ARE TO BE PERFORMED. 

As an independent contractor, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing services and fulfilling 

obligations hereunder in a professional manner. COUNTY shall not control the manner of performance. 

A.4. FACILITIES FURNISHED and OTHER OBLIGATIONS BY COUNTY. 

 Provide copies of existing records and supporting documentation as necessary to perform all work. 

 Provide private comfortable location for CONTRACTOR to meet individuals and groups. 

 Collaborate to clarify and develop referral procedures and any other necessary structural protocols. 

 Provide training to CONTRACTOR on paperwork requirements. 



4 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

PAYMENT 

COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR as follows: 

B.1 BASE CONTRACT FEE.  COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR eighty dollars per hour ($80.00).  

CONTRACTOR shall submit requests for payment ("Invoice") monthly.  Invoice shall be substantially in the form 

of the invoice attached hereto as Attachment E. Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days after the Invoice is 

approved and accepted by the County Superintendent.  In no event shall total compensation paid for services to 

CONTRACTOR under this Agreement exceed twenty-two thousand dollars ($19,200), without a written amendment 

to this Agreement approved by the County Superintendent; 

B.2 MILEAGE.   None 

B.3 TRAVEL COSTS.  None 

B.4 AUTHORIZATION REQUIRED.  Services performed by CONTRACTOR and not authorized in this 

Agreement shall not be paid for by COUNTY. Payment for additional services shall be made to CONTRACTOR by 

COUNTY if, and only if, this Agreement is amended in writing by both parties in advance of performing additional 

services. 

B.5 SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES.   In-Person Emergency Services required before travel cost can be 

incurred 

B.6  MAXIMUM CONTRACT AMOUNT. The maximum amount payable to CONTRACTOR under this 

Agreement shall not exceed the following: 

B. 1 Base Contract Fee  $80 per hour 

B.2 Mileage   0 

B.3 Travel Costs  0 

B.4 Authorization Required Yes 

B.5 Special Circumstances Yes 

MAXIMUM CONTRACT AMOUNT:  $19,200 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2018-05C 

 

AGREEMENT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT for Professional Services ("Agreement") is made as of the Agreement Date 

set forth below by and between the Sierra County Office of Education, ("the COUNTY"), and Mary Lowe, 

the ("CONTRACTOR"). 

In consideration of the services to be rendered, the sums to be paid, and each and every 

covenant and condition contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

1. SERVICES. 

The CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR has the special skills, expertise and experience 

in order to effectively provide individual and/or group counseling services. CONTRACTOR shall provide 

the services described in Attachment "A", and in the manner specified in Attachment "A", Provisions A-2 

through A-3. 

2. TERM. 

Commencement Date: September 5, 2017 

Termination Date: June 8, 2018 

3.  PAYMENT. 

COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement on a time 

and material basis and in the amount set forth in Attachment "B". The payment specified in Attachment 

"B" shall be the only payment made to CONTRACTOR for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 

CONTRACTOR shall submit all billings for said services to COUNTY in the manner specified in 

Attachment "B". 

4. FACILITIES, EQUIPMENT AND OTHER MATERIALS AND OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, furnish all facilities, equipment, and other 

materials which may be required for furnishing services pursuant to this Agreement, except as provided 

in this paragraph.  COUNTY shall furnish CONTRACTOR only those facilities, equipment, and other 

materials and shall perform those obligations listed in Attachment "A". 

5. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS. 

Those additional provisions unique to this Agreement are set forth in Attachment "C". 

6. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

The general provisions set forth in Attachment "D" are part of this Agreement. Any inconsistency 

between said general provisions and any other terms or conditions of this Agreement shall be controlled by 

the other terms or conditions insofar as the latter are inconsistent with the general provisions. 

 

7. DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES. 

Dr. Merrill M. Grant, County Superintendent, is the designated representative of the COUNTY, and 

will administer this Agreement for the COUNTY. Mary Lowe, MFT, is the authorized representative for 

CONTRACTOR. Changes in designated representatives shall occur only by advance written notice to the 

other party. 



 

2 
 

8. ATTACHMENTS. 

All attachments referred to herein are attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 

herein. Attachments include: 

Attachment A - Services 

Attachment B - Payment 

Attachment C - Additional Provisions 

Attachment D - General Provisions  

Attachment E - Form of Invoice 

 

9. AGREEMENT DATE. The Agreement Date is September 5, 2017. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day here below 

written. 

"COUNTY"      “CONTRACTOR” 

By:_______________________________   By: _________________________________ 

Dr. Merrill M. Grant                  Date                 Mary Lowe, MFT                       Date 

County Superintendent 

 

 

CONTRACTOR TAXPAYER I.D. NUMBER  

 

 

 

____________________________________                

(Taxpayer I.D. or Social Security No.) 

 

  



 

3 
 

ATTACHMENT A 

A.1. SCOPE OF SERVICES AND DUTIES. 

At the request of Sierra County Office of Education, duties of the CONTRACTOR shall include, but are not limited 

to, 

 Provide individual and group therapy. 

 Work in collaboration with school personnel as designated by the school site administrator or superintendent. 

 Maintain professional license and malpractice insurance as per the General Provisions, D.5. 

 Facilitate a therapy group for junior high or high school girls if requested by school site administrator. 

 Provide six and a half (8.0) hours of clinical services for youth per week; documentation not to exceed 

maximum contract amount of $27,000.  

 Turn in invoice monthly. 

A.2. TIME SERVICES RENDERED. 

Work will begin on date identified in Provision 2, “TERM”, of this Agreement. Thereafter, CONTRACTOR 

shall perform services in a diligently and timely manner. 

A.3. MANNER SERVICES ARE TO BE PERFORMED. 

As an independent contractor, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing services and fulfilling 

obligations hereunder in a professional manner. COUNTY shall not control the manner of performance. 

A.4. FACILITIES FURNISHED and OTHER OBLIGATIONS BY COUNTY. 

 Provide copies of existing records and supporting documentation as necessary to perform all work. 

 Provide private comfortable location for CONTRACTOR to meet individuals and groups. 

 Collaborate to clarify and develop referral procedures and any other necessary structural protocols. 

 Provide training to CONTRACTOR on paperwork requirements. 



 

4 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

PAYMENT 

COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR as follows: 

B.1 BASE CONTRACT FEE.  COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR eighty dollars per hour ($80.00).  

CONTRACTOR shall submit requests for payment ("Invoice") monthly.  Invoice shall be substantially in the form 

of the invoice attached hereto as Attachment E. Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days after the Invoice is 

approved and accepted by the County Superintendent.  In no event shall total compensation paid for services to 

CONTRACTOR under this Agreement exceed twenty-seven thousand dollars ($27,000), without a written 

amendment to this Agreement approved by the County Superintendent; 

B.2 MILEAGE.   None 

B.3 TRAVEL COSTS.  None 

B.4 AUTHORIZATION REQUIRED.  Services performed by CONTRACTOR and not authorized in this 

Agreement shall not be paid for by COUNTY. Payment for additional services shall be made to CONTRACTOR by 

COUNTY if, and only if, this Agreement is amended in writing by both parties in advance of performing additional 

services. 

B.5 SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES.   In-Person Emergency Services required before travel cost can be 

incurred 

B.6  MAXIMUM CONTRACT AMOUNT. The maximum amount payable to CONTRACTOR under this 

Agreement shall not exceed the following: 

B. 1 Base Contract Fee  $80 per hour 

B.2 Mileage   0 

B.3 Travel Costs  0 

B.4 Authorization Required Yes 

B.5 Special Circumstances Yes 

MAXIMUM CONTRACT AMOUNT:  $27,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2018-04C scoe 

CONTRACT FOR SPECIAL SERVICES 
BY INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 
 THIS CONTRACT, entered into this 1st day of October, 2016, by and between the 
LASSEN COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION (hereinafter referred to as LCOE), and SIERRA 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION; 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

 WHEREAS, LCOE has need to contract for special services in matters relating to Family 
Support Services pursuant to SB 1085 and Public Law 99-457 which provides for coordination 
and development of a comprehensive multidisciplinary program providing appropriate early 
intervention services to infants and toddlers with delays or disabilities and their families (Section 
20 USC 1476) as required by law for the region consisting of Lassen, Plumas, Modoc and Sierra 
Counties; 
 
 WHEREAS, SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION is an organization engaged 
in the business of education, performs services for other members of the community, and 
employs others; 
 
 WHEREAS, SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION appears qualified to 
perform such special services under contract, and it is the intent of the parties to create an 
independent contract by this agreement.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties do mutually covenant and agree as follows: 
 
 1.  Engagement:  LCOE hereby engages SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, 
who hereby agrees to perform for LCOE the services set forth in Exhibit A, pursuant to the terms 
and conditions herein. 
 
 2.  Scope of Services:  Pursuant to this contract, SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF 
EDUCATION shall provide to LCOE the following special services: 
 

SEE EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 All services to be rendered by SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION will be in 
compliance with the contract between the LCOE and the California Department of 
Developmental Services. 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION shall render quarterly reports relating to 
progress toward project objectives to LCOE, in care of Melissa Rojas, Program Coordinator, 
472-013 Johnstonville Road, Susanville, California 96130, on or before June 2017.  A statistical 
report, a brief narrative and a report on annual expenditures shall be submitted on or before July 
15, 2017.    In addition, SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION shall render a copy of its 
proposed annual RAINBOW budget to LCOE. 
  



2018-04C scoe 

 3. Compensation:  LCOE will pay costs to SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF 
EDUCATION in the amount of $1097.50 per quarter, for a total of $3,292.50. 
 
 4.   Term of Contract:  This contract shall commence on October 1, 2016 (which shall be 
the date on which SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION commences work under this 
contract), and shall continue until June 30, 2017, or until notice of termination or modification 
shall have been given as provided in Paragraph 5 of this contract. 
 
 5.   Termination or Modification of Contract:  Either party may terminate or modify this 
contract upon thirty (30) days notice by giving to the other party written notice of such 
termination or desired modification.  Subcontractor shall be paid for all work satisfactorily 
completed prior to the effective date of such termination.  In the event that the contract between 
LCOE and the California Department of Developmental Services is modified or cancelled, or in 
the event funding by the state is terminated or reduced, LCOE may terminate this contract 
immediately so as not to be at risk for unfunded program costs.   
 

6.    Termination of Contract for Cause:  If SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF 
EDUCATION fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner its obligations under this 
contract, or if SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION shall violate any of the terms or 
provisions of this contract, LCOE shall have the right to terminate this contract effective 
immediately upon LCOE giving written notice to subcontractor.  SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE 
OF EDUCATION shall be paid for all work satisfactorily completed prior to the effective date of 
such termination. 
 
 7.  Changes in Scope of Work:  The parties hereto may modify the terms of this 
agreement by mutual written consent. 
 
 8.    Non-discrimination:  There shall be no discrimination against any person employed 
or served by this contract in any manner forbidden by law. 
 
 9.  Conflicts of Interest:  No officer, employee, director or agent of LCOE shall 
participate in any decision relating to this contract which affects their personal interest or the 
interest of any corporation, partnership or association in which they are directly or indirectly 
interested; nor shall any person have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract of the 
provisions thereof. 
 

10.  Copyright:  No reports, maps, documents or other materials produced in whole or 
part under this contract shall be subject to an application for copyright by or on behalf of 
subcontractor. 
 

11.  Findings Confidential:  No reports, maps, information, documents, equipment or any 
other materials given to or prepared by SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION under 
this contract shall become the property of SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, nor 
shall they be made available to any individual or organization by subcontractor without prior 
written approval of LCOE except as otherwise provided by law, or in accordance with the duties 
of this contract.  SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION will maintain all records in 



2018-04C scoe 

compliance with requirements of the contract between LCOE and the California Department of 
Developmental Services. 
 

12.  SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION understands and agrees that no 
person employed in the performance of this contract will be eligible for membership in any 
LCOE retirement program or for paid holidays, vacation, sick leave or any other leave with or 
without pay or other job benefits provided to employees of LCOE. 
 

13.  SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION understands and agrees that all 
FICA, Social Security, Federal Withholding, State Withholding and other employer/employee 
expenses of SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION are the sole responsibility of 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION. 
 

14.  SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION understands and agrees that the term 
of service is governed only by this contract and that no right of tenure is created hereby.  It is the 
intent of the parties to establish a contractual relationship only. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, LCOE and SIERRA COUNTY OF EDUCATION have 
executed this contract on the day and year first set forth. 

 
 

LASSEN COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 
BY: ____________________________________  DATE:_________________ 
Patricia L. Thurman, Associate Superintendent 
Lassen County Office of Education/Lassen Child and Family Resources 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 
BY: ____________________________________  DATE:_________________ 
          Dr. Merrill Grant, Superintendent 
          Sierra County Office of Education 
 



2018-04C scoe 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 

1. Parent to Parent Support:  Provide parent to parent support via face to face, phone or 
electronic means.  Encourage the development of parent support activities according to 
parent preference and incorporate families with children aged birth to three who have special 
needs.  Provide parent to parent support for families of children aged birth to three who have 
special needs, but are not ready to enter the Part C delivery system at the discretion of 
parents. 

 
2. Information Dissemination and Referral:  Promote RAINBOW Family Resource Network 

as a recognized resource to the community; provide responsive and timely services; provide 
family-friendly, current, unbiased, accurate and varied information regarding disabilities; 
provide culturally competent services and resources; provide linkage to appropriate Sierra 
County projects for the purpose of disseminating information regarding training opportunities 
for parents and professionals; provide linkage between Sierra County families and the 
California Early Start Program Central Directory of Early Intervention Resources or other 
appropriate resources. 

 
3. Public Awareness:  Assist the LCOE Program Specialist in disseminating information and 

resource material to families of children birth to three eligible for Early Start services in 
Sierra County; make public presentations about RAINBOW services to encourage 
networking; assist in the placement of public awareness messages with the media; utilize 
promotional material for the RAINBOW program at community events; share information 
regarding RAINBOW services with other community resources; promote family support 
systems in the community; promote a “people first” attitude and disability awareness within 
the community; and participate in the community’s public awareness and outreach efforts 
through Part C. 

 
4. Family-Professional Collaboration Activities:  Seek opportunities to participate in 

programs designed to implement parent training, education and leadership development.  
Encourage families and professionals to work as a team to provide for the needs of each 
child.  Identify and encourage parent leadership in securing appropriate services for children.   

 
5. Transition Assistance for Families:  Establish/maintain partnerships with hospitals, family 

resource centers, infant and preschool programs, and other agencies, and utilize parents of 
older children with special needs to assist families transitioning from hospital to home and 
from early intervention services to appropriate preschool services. 

 
6. Assistance to Families of Children with Low Incidence Disabilities:  Identify any children 

in the target population with solely low incidence disabilities through communication with 
the County Office of Education Early Intervention program and various service and health 
care providers.  Make appropriate referrals to other low incidence programs and materials. 

 
 

 





Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 239,007.00 250,623.00 22,804.40 229,528.52 1,709.92-Teachers Salaries

1120 1,200.00 5,860.00 4,660.00-Certificated Substitutes

1200 63,839.00 60,613.00 6,209.59 55,938.31 1,534.90-Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 170,833.00 176,531.00 14,565.03 162,368.88 402.91-Certificated Supervisor Admini

1310 4,000.00 4,000.00-Teacher in Charge

Total for Object 1000 473,679.00 488,967.00 43,579.02 457,695.71 12,307.73-

2100 91,496.00 94,976.00 11,869.08 85,171.42 2,064.50-Instructional Aides' Salaries

2105 51.00 51.00 .00 Per Diem - Same Day Travel

2120 172.71 172.71-Classified Substitutes

2200 22,358.00 15,850.00 1,304.02 10,449.50 4,096.48 Classified Support Salaries

2300 101,356.00 89,925.00 7,126.00 103,746.89 20,947.89-Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 131,117.00 131,117.00 11,635.81 124,050.66 4,569.47-Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 13,638.00 12,099.00 15,445.40 3,346.40-Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 359,965.00 344,018.00 31,934.91 339,087.58 27,004.49-

3101 59,287.00 86,923.00 5,425.62 56,695.99 24,801.39 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 1,650.00 1,715.00 57.89 1,338.71 318.40 STRS Classified Positions

3201 70.82 70.82-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 59,611.00 56,439.00 4,355.56 53,331.35 1,247.91-PERS Classified Positions

3301 74.00 70.06 3.94 OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 21,633.00 20,535.00 1,893.51 20,690.53 2,049.04-OASDI Classified Positions

3311 6,234.00 6,216.00 576.14 6,088.13 448.27-Medicare Certificated Position

3312 5,157.00 4,901.00 449.52 4,998.88 547.40-Medicare Classified Positions

3401 94,367.00 99,658.00 9,124.79 87,078.21 3,455.00 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 59,571.00 77,330.00 6,551.68 66,353.82 4,424.50 Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 329.00 234.00 21.79 229.01 16.80-SUI Certificated

3502 249.00 176.00 15.98 172.62 12.60-SUI Classified

3601 881.00 15,907.00 1,474.49 15,581.06 1,148.55-Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 1,590.00 11,997.00 1,150.40 13,119.73 2,273.13-Workers' Compensation Classifi

3902 6,920.00 27,682.00 27,681.00 1.00 Golden Handshake-Class

Total for Object 3000 317,479.00 409,787.00 31,097.37 353,499.92 25,189.71 

4100 410.00 2,237.00 2,237.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 444.00 .00 Library and Reference Material

4300 23,277.00 46,325.00 5,554.68 20,484.85 20,285.47 Materials and Supplies

4320 2,972.00 500.00 500.00 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,085.35 85.35-Office Supplies

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  2 2017  7:55AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2105
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4350 5,500.00 5,500.00 1,361.34 1,652.82 2,485.84 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 9,561.00 22,765.00 16,614.06 6,150.94 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 43,164.00 78,327.00 6,916.02 39,837.08 31,573.90 

5100 42,000.00 91,000.00 12,041.58 35,832.80 43,125.62 Subagreements for Services

5200 23,280.00 27,624.00 8,607.38 15,573.38 3,443.24 Travel and Conference

5300 18,370.00 19,083.00 61.25 11,030.50 7,991.25 Dues and Membership

5400 9,300.00 9,300.00 8,191.00 1,109.00 Insurance

5500 9,200.00 9,200.00 490.83 6,728.46 1,980.71 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,600.00 3,100.00 545.10 587.21 1,967.69 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 25,500.00 20,500.00 1,000.00 19,500.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 500.00 Legal Publications

5805 613.00 613.00 51.00 120.15 441.85 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 456.22 1,043.78 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 444,507.00 483,873.00 103,565.86 287,740.90 92,566.24 Contracted Services

5899 1,709.46 4,232.61 5,942.07-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 1,600.00 1,900.00 894.89 1,005.11 Communications

Total for Object 5000 579,970.00 669,193.00 128,528.68 371,975.68 168,688.64 

6200 30,032.00 64,032.00 42,100.89 13,267.11 8,664.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 30,300.00 20,000.00 26,474.98 6,474.98-Equipment

Total for Object 6000 60,332.00 84,032.00 68,575.87 13,267.11 2,189.02 

7141 27,582.00 24,428.00 24,428.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7299 20,000.00 20,000.00-All Other Transfers Out

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 27,582.00 24,428.00 .00 20,000.00 4,428.00 

192,757.05 1,862,171.00 2,098,752.00 310,631.87 1,595,363.08 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 80,000.00 80,000.00 86,209.41 6,209.41-Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 13,360.00 13,360.00 15,213.42 1,853.42-Other Authorized Interfund Tra

8,062.83-93,360.00 93,360.00 .00 101,422.83 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

184,694.22 1,955,531.00 2,192,112.00 310,631.87 1,696,785.91 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  2 2017  7:55AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7299
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=92941&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619




1 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 
Board Bylaw 
Remuneration, Reimbursement And Other Benefits 
 
BB 9250  
Board Bylaws 
 
Remuneration 
 
Each member of the Board of Education may receive the monthly compensation as provided for in law. 
 
On an annual basis, the Board may increase the compensation of Board members beyond the limit delineated in Education 
Code 35120 in an amount not to exceed five percent based on the present monthly rate of compensation. Any increase 
made pursuant to this section shall be effective upon approval by the Board. (Education Code 35120) 
 
Board members are not required to accept payment for meetings attended. 
 
Any member who does not attend all Board meetings during the month is eligible to receive only a percentage of the 
monthly compensation equal to the percentage of meetings attended unless otherwise authorized by the Board in 
accordance with law. (Education Code 35120) 
 
A member may be compensated for meetings he/she missed when the Board, by resolution, finds that he/she was 
performing designated services for the district at the time of the meeting or that he/she was absent because of illness, jury 
duty or a hardship deemed acceptable by the Board.  (Ed. Code 35120) 
 
Reimbursement of Expenses 
 
When authorized in advance by the Board, members shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred when 
performing authorized services for the district.  Expenses for travel, telephone, business meals, or other authorized 
purposes shall be in accordance with policies established for district personnel and at the same rate of reimbursement. 
Education Code 35044) 
 
(cf. 9240 - Board Development) 
(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses) 
 
Authorized purposes may include, but are not limited to, attendance at educational seminars or conferences designed to 
improve Board members' skills and knowledge; participation in regional, state, or national organizations whose activities 
affect the district's interests; attendance at district or community events; and meetings with state or federal officials on 
issues of community concern. 
 
Personal expenses shall be the responsibility of individual Board members. Personal expenses include, but are not limited 
to, the personal portion of any trip, tips or gratuities, alcohol, entertainment, laundry, expenses of any family member who 
is accompanying the Board member on district-related business, personal use of an automobile, and personal losses and 
traffic violation fees incurred while on district business. 
 
Any questions regarding the propriety of a particular type of expense should be resolved by the Superintendent or 
designee before the expense is incurred. 
 
Health and Welfare Benefits for Current Board Members 
 
Board members may participate in the health and welfare benefits program provided for district/county employees. 
 
Health and welfare benefits for Board members shall be no greater than that received by district/county's Classified 
service staff with the most generous schedule of benefits.  (Government Code 53208.5) 



2 

 

 
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 
 
The district/county shall pay the cost of all premiums required for Board members electing to participate in the 
district/county health and welfare benefits program to the same extent that the district pays premiums for district/county 
Classified service staff in accordance with Government Code 53208.5. 
 
Health and welfare benefits provided to Board members shall be extended at the same level to their spouses, dependent 
children to the child's 26th birthday and dependent children regardless of age who are physically or mentally 
incapacitated. 
 
Medicare Eligible Current Board Members 
 
At no time shall the district/county's cost for a current Board member's Medicare and/or Medicare supplement policy, 
including dependent coverage, exceed the amount the district/county contributes for eligible Classified service employees. 
 
In lieu of enrollment in the district/county's group sponsored health insurance plan, a current Board member eligible for 
Medicare health insurance may receive reimbursement from the district/county for the cost of his/her Medicare Plan(s) 
(Part A and/or Part B and/or Part D). 
When a Board member is enrolled in a Medicare policy and receiving cost reimbursement from the District/County, the 
same courtesy may be extended to a dependent who is Medicare eligible. 
 
A Board member who elects a Medicare supplement policy in lieu of enrollment in the district/county's group sponsored 
health insurance plan may receive premium reimbursement from the district/county. A Board member may be reimbursed 
for a family member's Medicare supplement policy if the dependent was covered under the district/county plan (tier rate 
structure) immediately prior to un-enrollment from the group plan. 
 
The district/county employer may reimburse the Board member for both Medicare and Medicare supplemental policies 
simultaneously. The Board member may also be reimbursed for a dependent who is eligible for Medicare and Medicare 
supplemental policies. 
 
In the event an active Board member chooses to end benefits in the district/county's group sponsored health insurance plan 
for a Medicare and/or Medicare supplement policy, the member may re-enroll in the group sponsored plan during the 
annual open enrollment period. 
 
Health and Welfare Benefits for Former Board Members (Retiree) 
 
Retiring trustees of the Board of Education, who are covered by the district/county group health plan at the time of their 
retirement from the Board after serving at least two (2) full terms, shall have the option to continue the benefit program at 
their own expense. At their own expense, continued coverage through the district/county shall also be made available to 
Board trustee's spouse and dependents upon the Board trustee's death.  Retirees who choose to retain health insurance 
benefits shall be placed on the tiered rate structure. A Retiree may select medical coverage only or all offered benefits 
(dental and vision). Retirees may not select dental and/or vision coverage without medical coverage.  Retirees are not 
eligible for life insurance coverage. Eligible retirees and covered spouses must secure Medicare Part A and Part B for the 
group plan Medicare rate. Retirees who discontinue coverage cannot re-enroll in any District plan. 
 
Legal Reference: 
Available upon request 
                  SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

       SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Bylaw  
adopted:  April 10, 2007         Loyalton, California 
revised:  May 14, 2013 
revised:  July 9, 2013 
revised:  October 8, 2013 

Hannah
Highlight







MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

May 9, 2017 
5:00 pm CLOSED SESSION 

6:00 pm REGULAR SESSION 
Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Loyalton, CA 96118 

This meeting was available for videoconferencing at Downieville School, 130 School St., Downieville, CA 95936 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 President SHARON DRYDEN called the meeting to order at 5 pm. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 

  
 PRESENT: Ms.  Sharon Dryden, President   
   Mr.  Allen Wright, Vice President  
    Mr.  Tim Driscoll, Clerk 
   Mr.  Mike Moore, Member  
   Ms.  Patty Hall, Member (arrived at 5:02 pm) 
 
 ABSENT:     None     
 
C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA with the following changes:  Remove Items 1617-107 and 1617-111 

 DRISCOLL/MOORE 
 4/0 
 1 Absent 
  

  HALL arrived at 5:02 pm 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION 
 
  At this time, the meeting opened for any public comments regarding the Closed Session items. There  was no 

 public comment. 
 
E. CLOSED SESSION 
 The Board of Trustees, Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant and Business Manager Nona Griesert will move 

in to closed session to discuss the following item: 
1. Government Code §54957.6, Conference with Labor Negotiators 

   Agency Negotiator for the Board:  Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 
   Employee Organizations:   
    Represented Employees:     Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association 
    Unrepresented Employees:  Sierra-Plumas Classified Employees 
            Confidential Employees 
            Administrative Employees 
      Superintendent 
 
F. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION at 5:56 pm 
 
  ADJOURN FOR BREAK 
 
G. RECONVENE at 6:08 pm  
 
H. FLAG SALUTE 
 



Sierra County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2017 
 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
AGENDA 

   2 
 

I. REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION – President DRYDEN stated that the closed session consisted of 
discussion only 

 
J. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Superintendent’s Report 
a. Loyalton Elementary School Community Forum 
b. Upcoming Community Forums 
 May 10, Downieville School 
 May 16, Loyalton High School  

 
2. Business Report 
 a.  Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/16 to 4/30/17 
 
3. Staff Reports (5 minutes) 
 MONGOLO stated that the testing process has begun.  GRANT mentioned that interviews for the 
 special education position will be held this Thursday.  

  
4. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes) 

 
5. Public Comment – 

a. Current location-None 
b. Videoconference location-None 

 
K. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held April 11, 2017 
2. Approval of Board Report – Checks Dated 4/1/2017 through 4/30/2017 
3. Review of BP/AR/E 5116.1, Intradistrict Open Enrollment (The Board shall annually review  

  this policy.  Education Code 35160.5, 48980) 
4. Authorization to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding between Sierra County Office of Education 

and Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, #2018-02C 
   MOORE/DRISCOLL 
   5/0 
 
L. ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. New Business 
 
PUBLIC HEARING-LCAP  
 
1617-99 Public Hearing opened at 6:07 pm to receive public comment on the Proposed 2017-18  

  Local Control and Accountability Plan and closed without comment. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING-SCOE Budget 
 
1617-100 Public Hearing opened at 6:08 pm to receive public comment on the 2017-18 Proposed  

  Budget closed without comment 
 



Sierra County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2017 
 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
AGENDA 

   3 
 

PUBLIC HEARING-Proposition 30, Education Protection Account 
 
1617-101 Public Hearing opened at 6:10 pm to receive public comment on the use of Proposition 30  

  funding for 2017-2018 and closed without comment 
 

PUBLIC HEARING-Collective Bargaining Disclosure Statement, an opportunity for members of the public to 
directly address the governing board on the Collective Bargaining Agreement, Item 1617-103 through and 
including 108 listed on this Agenda under Action Items, opened at 6:11 and closed without comment at 6:12 pm. 

 
1617-102 Presentation of Classified Employees’ Initial Proposal for the 2016-17 Academic Year 

 
1617-103 Completion of Bargaining Sierra-Plumas Teachers Association, 2016-2017 Negotiations 

 MOORE motioned to agree to a 2.5% salary increase, effective July 2016 and a hard cap of 
 $17,536.50 on insurance for new hires  
 DRISCOLL seconded 
 5/0 
  

1617-104 Completion of Bargaining, Administration, 2016-2017 Negotiations 
 MOORE motioned to agree to a 2% salary increase, effective July 2016 and a hard cap of 
 $17,536.50 on insurance for new hires 
 DRISCOLL seconded 
 5/0 
 

1617-105 Completion of Bargaining, Sierra-Plumas Classified Employees, 2016-2017 Negotiations 
 MOORE motioned to agree to a 2.5% salary increase, effective July 2016 and a hard cap of 
 $17,536.50 on insurance for new hires 
 DRISCOLL seconded 
 5/0 
 

1617-106 Completion of Bargaining, Classified Management Employees, 2016-2017 Negotiations 
  (added in error; item relevant to District agenda) 
 
1617-107 Completion of Bargaining, Confidential Employees, 2016-2017 Negotiations 

 WRIGHT motioned to agree to a 2.5% salary increase, effective July 2016 and a hard cap of 
 $17,536.50 on insurance for new hires 
 HALL seconded 
 5/0 
 

1617-108 Adoption of Resolution 17-001, Set Superintendent Salary 
MOORE motioned to adopt Resolution 17-001 at $25,000 per year, for the 2017-2018 fiscal 
year.  WRIGHT seconded. 
TRUSTEE DRISCOLL  AYE 
TRUSTEE DRYDEN  AYE 
TRUSTEE HALL  AYE 
TRUSTEE MOORE  AYE 
TRUSTEE WRIGHT  AYE 
5/0 

 



Sierra County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2017 
 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
AGENDA 

   4 
 

1617-109 Authorization for Certificated Employees to participate in up to three Staff Development 
Activities during 2017-18, designed by teachers for teachers pursuant to the provision of SB1193, 
at least six hours in length, to be compensated at the rate of $200 per documented Staff 
Development Activity.   

 (SPTA Collective Bargaining Agreement Article 3.11) 
 MOORE/WRIGHT 
 5/0 
 

1617-110 Authorization to fill Bus Driver Position, .35 FTE (added in error; item relevant to District agenda) 
 

    APPROVAL OF BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS 
  MOORE motioned to approve item 1617-111 through and including 115 
  DRISCOLL seconded  
  5/0  
 

1617-111 Board Policy 4034, School/Office Closure Due to Emergency Conditions (New) 
 

1617-112 Exhibit 5145.6, Parental Notifications, revision 
 

1617-113 Board Policy 6111, School Calendar, revision 
 

1617-114 Board Policy 6144, Controversial Issues, revision 
 

1617-115 Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6174, Education for English Learners, 
 revision 

 
M. ADVANCED PLANNING 
 

1. Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on June 13, 2017, at Downieville School, 130 School St., 
Downieville, CA 95936, beginning with Closed Session, as needed, at 5:00 pm and the Regular Board 
Meeting at 6:00 pm 

 
2.   Suggested Agenda Items   
 

a. _______________________ 
 
N. ADJOURN at 6:23 pm 

 DRISCOLL/HALL 
 5/0 
 
 
 _______________________________  _______________________________ 

 Tim Driscoll, Clerk     Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 
  Secretary to the County Board of Education 

 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 05/01/2017 through 05/31/2017

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00014645 05/08/2017 APEX SAW WORKS 01-4300 SHOP SUPPLIES 409.33 

00014646 05/08/2017 E3 DIAGNOSTICS ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 01-5810 ANNUAL CALIBRATION OF AUDIOMETER 130.00 

00014647 05/08/2017 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. 01-4330 MONITORS 93.63 

01-5899 MONITORS 280.88 374.51 

00014648 05/08/2017 DEREK W. CLARK 01-5810 SPEAKER FEE - TRAVEL 411.60 

00014649 05/08/2017 TOMMY DEL CARLO 01-5810 TRANSPORTATION REIMBURSE 130.11 

00014650 05/08/2017 STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 01-5805 EMPLOYMENT FINGERPRINTING 49.00 

00014651 05/08/2017 EL DORADO COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5300 CSR DUES 450.00 

00014652 05/08/2017 NONA GRIESERT 01-5200 MILEAGE 57.46 

00014653 05/08/2017 JANIS HARDEMAN 01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 2,000.00 

00014654 05/08/2017 JANE V. LEE, M.A., LMFT 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 960.00 

00014655 05/08/2017 LES SCHAWB 01-4350 SUV BRAKES 744.50 

VEHICLE SERVICE 31.45 

01-5600 VEHICLE SERVICE 15.73 

01-5899 SUV BRAKES 248.16 

VEHICLE SERVICE 15.73 1,055.57 

00014656 05/08/2017 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 198.93 

00014657 05/08/2017 MARY LOWE, MFT 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 1,440.00 

00014658 05/08/2017 LESLIE MARSDEN, MOT, OTR/L 01-5810 OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY SERVICES 2,510.00 

00014659 05/08/2017 BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-5100 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

6,709.50 

00014660 05/08/2017 MARLENE MONGOLO 01-4350 MILEAGE 52.43 

00014661 05/08/2017 MIKE MOORE 01-5200 PER DIEM 26.75 

00014662 05/08/2017 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-5600 COPIER 22.52 

00014663 05/08/2017 READ NATURALLY 01-4300 INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 351.75 

Unpaid Sales Tax 21.75- 330.00 

00014664 05/08/2017 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 124.71 

00014665 05/08/2017 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 MISC. SHOP SUPPLIES 17.14 

00014666 05/08/2017 SMARTWATT ENERGY, INC. 01-6200 LIGHTING 7,842.20 

01-9515 LIGHTING 392.11- 7,450.09 

00014667 05/08/2017 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 MAY 17 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,600.00 

76-9576 MAY 17 HEALTH INSURANCE 16,462.00 18,062.00 

00014668 05/08/2017 U.S. BANK 01-4300 VISION SCREENER PRINTER 139.20 

01-4330 OFFICE SUPPLIES 96.79 

01-5200 CCSESA REGISTRATION 350.00 

01-5899 OFFICE SUPPLIES 290.35 

WASC HOTEL 1,023.00 1,899.34 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  2 2017  7:57AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 05/01/2017 through 05/31/2017

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00014669 05/08/2017 VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 229.75 

01-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 55.19 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 44.16 329.10 

00014670 05/08/2017 BARBARA WEAVER 01-5200 PER DIEM/PARKING 28.00 

00014671 05/08/2017 ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 PER DIEM 6.69 

Total Number of Checks 27 45,234.78 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 27 28,794.53 01

Payroll Clearing 1 16,462.00 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 27 45,256.53 

21.75 

45,234.78 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  2 2017  7:57AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Page 1 

 
LCAP Year  2017–18  2018–19  2019–20 

Local Control 
Accountability Plan and 
Annual Update (LCAP) 
Template 

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.  

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations 

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits) 

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics [Note: this text will be hyperlinked to the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubric web page when it becomes available.]: Essential data to support completion of 
this LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the rubrics are also 
provided within the template.  

LEA Name Sierra –Plumas Joint Unified School District/Sierra County Office of Education 

Contact Name and 
Title 

Merrill Grant, Ed.D.  

Superintendent 

Email and 
Phone 

mgrant@spjusd.org 

    

 

 

2017-20 Plan Summary 
 

THE STORY 

Briefly describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them. 

The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and Sierra County Office of Education serves all of Sierra County and the eastern quarter of 
Plumas County. A five person Governing Board, each member of which represents a defined geographical area of the District, governs the 
District. The District Governing Board also serves as the Sierra County Board of Education. 

Sierra County lies northeast of Sacramento and borders the State of Nevada on the east. Located in the heart of the Northern Sierra Nevada 
Mountains, it contains one-half million acres of forestland, forty-five mountain lakes, and an estimated seven hundred miles of trout streams. 
The eastern quarter of Plumas County lies within the boundaries of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, and children from the 
towns of Vinton, Chilcoot, and Beckwourth attend school in Loyalton.  Elevations within the District range from 2000 to nearly 9000 feet. 
Heavy snowfall and extreme temperatures are the general rule during the winter at the higher elevations.  Eastern Sierra and Plumas county 
include the great Sierra Valley, once an ancient lakebed but is now the largest alpine valley in the Sierra Nevada range, a natural area for 
agriculture, timber production and mineral extraction operations. The western portion of Sierra County is heavily forested, has timber 
management areas, and contains both lode and placer gold mining operations. Gold was discovered here in 1849, and the area is rich in 

mailto:mgrant@spjusd.org


Page 2 

early California history.  Recreational activities abound including fishing, hunting, skiing, hiking, camping, boating, and visits to points of 
historical interest. 

We envision schools where all children succeed, where all children feel safe, and where their curiosity is cultivated. We provide an 
educational environment that encourages productive, responsible citizens. It is our goal to equip students with the tools to live and to 
contribute successfully in a rapidly changing world. Our schools offer a challenging, meaningful, and relevant curriculum that values 
creativity, critical thinking, and effective communication. Our students apply knowledge to new contexts and do so with honesty and integrity. 
Our students learn to appreciate beauty and care for the environment as well as each other and ultimately understand that their actions 
make a difference. 

 
Administrators – 4 
Bargaining Unit Representatives – 4 
Community – 3,240 
Principals – 2.5 
School Personnel – 66 
Students – 386  
     English Learners - 15 
     Foster Youth - 2 
     Homeless Youth - 1 
     Pupils with Disabilities – 46 
     Socio-economically disadvantaged – 40% 
 

 

 



Page 3 

 

 

 

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE  

Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward 
LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to 
maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in services for low-income 
students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for these students. 

GREATEST 
PROGRESS 

The district hired a full time English Learner Paraprofessional who serves the entire district EL population.  
Our test scores have continued to increase in both Math and English Language Arts.   

The district hired a part-time curriculum coordinator to guide the district in adopting current curriculum to 
meet California Common Core State Standards and to provide the necessary staff professional 
development in all areas of academics and behavioral needs. 

District wide Math and Language Arts curriculum were adopted and implemented this year for grades K-
12 that is aligned with the California Standards. 

Loyalton Elementary School now has a full time principal. 

All student 7-12 have chrome books that they are allowed to take home and use for their school 
assignments and projects. 

LCAP HIGHLIGHTS  

Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

This year’s LCAP is focused on student learning, professional development for all staff, and new standards based curriculum in math and 
language arts at all grade levels.  We continue to increase our stakeholder engagement through more meaningful methods, such as, more 
contact with parents, students, community members, and district wide meetings.  By obtaining more feedback from all stakeholders in the 
community we can improve more areas in the education of our Sierra/Plumas County students.   

The District will begin school year 2017-18 with early out Wednesdays built into our calendar in order to offer more consistent professional 
development for all staff district wide. 



Page 4 

Grades K-6 have one-to-one chrome books and or iPads within the classroom to be used at school for 
classroom assignments and projects. 

All classrooms and portable buildings have had upgraded lighting installed to increase efficiency and to 
lower power usage.  

 

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or 
“Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the 
LEA has determined need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What steps is the LEA planning 
to take to address these areas with the greatest need for improvement? 

GREATEST NEEDS 

Sierra-Plumas JUSD has room for growth in both Language Arts and Math CAASPP scores for all grades 
tested.  No dashboard indicator showed orange or red performance, however, the district will continue to 
address the need to increase performance on state testing. 

 

 

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels 
below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these performance gaps? 

PERFORMANCE GAPS 

The district does not have any student subgroups that are two or more performance levels below the 
“all student” performance.  The steps that we have taken to improve our student performance levels 
are: 

(a) New math and language arts curriculum 

(b) After school tutoring 

(c) Part-time curriculum coordinator 

(d) RTI meetings for at-risk students 

 

 

 
 



Page 5 

 
 

INCREASED OR IMPROVED SERVICES 

If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve services for low-income students, English 
learners, and foster youth. 

We will continue to fund and offer after school tutoring and intervention services within the school day.  We will continue to fund and provide 
a full time English Learner paraprofessional and continue to fund and expand counseling services for all students in need of that service.  
Science and Social Science curriculum need to be adopted to meet the new standards. 

We will continue to upgrade student computers and stay current with technology for all students. 

The District will implement a separate Transitional Kindergarten/Kindergarten classroom program with a new fully credentialed teacher. 

 

BUDGET SUMMARY 

Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics. 

 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

Total General Fund Budget Expenditures for LCAP Year $ 7,777,444 

Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the 
LCAP for LCAP Year 

$   580,000 

 

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget Expenditures. Briefly describe any of the 
General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP year not included in the LCAP. 

 

 

$ 5,689,262 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year 

 



Page 6 of Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Annual Update 
LCAP Year Reviewed: 2016-2017 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Goal 1 
All students receive instruction and services to support their intellectual, social, emotional, and physical development. 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

100% of teachers are fully credentialed for any core subject they are teaching 
and have certification to teacher English Learners. 

 

60% of courses have adopted instructional materials, textbooks, and course 
outlines to meet the California Common Core State Standards. 

 

100% of K-8 students are placed in broad courses of study. 

 

90% of 9-12 students are making adequate progress towards graduation. 

 

70% of students in grades 9-12 participate in at least one extra/co-curricular 
activity during the academic year. 

 

30% of graduates complete a Career Technical Pathway prior to graduation. 

90% of our current teachers are fully credentialed 

 

 

50% of core courses have adopted instructional materials, 
textbooks, and course outlines to meet the CCSS. 

 

100% of K-8 students are placed in broad courses of study. 

 

100% of 9-12 students are making adequate progress towards 
graduation 

67% of students in grades 9-12 participate in at least one 
extra/co-curricular activity during the academic year. 

 

36% of graduates complete a Career Technical Pathway prior 
to graduation. 

 
 
 



Page 7 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Development of a five-year textbook adoption plan 
proposed by Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association 
and approved by the School Board.  

ACTUAL 

We are on track for a five-year adoption plan that follows the 
state textbook guidelines. 

Expenditures 
BUDGETED 

  -0- 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

  -0- 

 
 
 
 

Action 

2 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Purchase of textbooks and instructional materials and 
development of updated course outlines to align with 
CCCSS in accordance with the five-year adoption 
plan.  

ACTUAL 

We purchase K-5 math curriculum and K-12 English Language 
Arts curriculum district wide. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$100,000 

LCFF Base and Prop 20 

Lottery 

Resource 6300 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$153,586 

RS0000.6300 

0B4100.4300-4305 

 
 

 

 

 

 
Empty Cell Empty Cell 



Page 8 

Action 

3 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund Title I instructional aides at each school site in 
the district to provide support for students in core 
academic subjects. 

ACTUAL 

All schools in the district have Title I instructional aides. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 55,000 

Federal Title I 

Resource 3010 and LCFF Supplemental 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$86,019 

 
 

Action 

4 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund English Language Learner instructional aides to 
provide support in core academic subjects and 
language acquisition. 

ACTUAL 

District hired a full-time instructional aide to serve all EL students 
in the district. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 40,000  

LCFF Supplemental 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$ 8,236 

Prog. 016 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Empty Cell Empty Cell 



Page 9 

Action 

5 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Provide part time Career Technical Education 
courses for students in grades 7-12 and fund 
extended summer contract for Agriculture teacher. 

ACTUAL 

We are funding an active Career Technical pathway for all 9-12 
students in the district.  Funding is also provided for extended 
summer contract for the Agriculture teacher. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 60,000 

LCFF Base, Sierra COE Ag Incentive Grant 7010, 
and Carl Perkins Grant 3550 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$13,348 

Action 

6 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Support co- and extra-Curricular activities, such as 
athletics and field trips. 

ACTUAL 

The district offers funding for athletics and field trips to all schools. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 60,000 LCFF Base and Non-Prop 20 Lottery 
Resource 1100 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$63,720 

Prog. 060.119 

 
 

 

 

Action 

7 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund an Art Specialist to work in grades K-6 

ACTUAL 

Art Specialists are funded to work in grades K-6 throughout the 
district. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 15,000 

LCFF Base 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$ 5,000 



Page 10 

 
 

Action 

8 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Consider hiring a credentialed PE teacher to serve all 
students. 

ACTUAL 

Still in consideration mode depending on master schedule needs 
of our high schools. 

Expenditures 
BUDGETED 

-0- 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

-0- 

 
 

Action 

9 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund instructors, course materials, and supplies for 
continuation high school for 3 days a week. 

ACTUAL 

The district still funds the continuation high school for 3 days a 
week. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 55,000 

LCFF Base/Supplemental  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$57,257 

 
 

Action 

10 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund instructors, course materials, online resource, 
and supplies for Independent Study Program for 3 
days a week. 

ACTUAL 

The district still funds the Independent Study Program for 3 days 
a week. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 47,000 

LCFF Base 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$50,553 

Prog. 081 

 



Page 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANALYSIS 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Empty Cell 

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 

The district provides curriculum to all students matching up with California Content Standards.  
Textbooks will be adopted based on the State guidelines.  Personnel have been hired and 
maintained to obtain maximum benefit to all students. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA. 

The teachers are confident that the new curriculum that was adopted this year will be effective in 
meeting the State Content Standards.  Students attending counseling and tutoring services have 
been successful for all those students. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Differences between budgeted and actual expenditures have been minimal. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as 
applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

No changes were made to this goal.  This goal will be addressed and re-evaluated for the 2017-
18 LCAP. 



Page 12 

Goal 2 
All students engage in a rigorous curriculum and acquire the knowledge, critical thinking skills, and characteristics needed for 
success in college, career, and life. 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

There is a published school calendar that includes minimum days 
designated for professional collaboration. 

 

100% of school staff submits a professional development plan to their 
site administrator on or before September 30. 

 

100% of eligible students participate in the California Assessment of 
Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP testing). 

 

50% of students met or exceeded standards on the 2016 CAASPP test. 

 

90% of students in intensive intervention programs achieve grade level 
within two years of entering the intervention program. 

 

45% of graduates meet the a-g UC/CSU entrance requirements. 

 

35% of students who take the Advanced Placement exams score a 3 or 
higher. 

 

Every year a school calendar is adopted by the Board and 
published. 

 

100% of school staff participated in a school curriculum 
and instruction survey to aid the curriculum coordinator in 
creating a district professional development plan. 

100% of eligible students participated in CAASPP. 

 

 

45% of students met or exceeded standards in English 
Language Arts and 42% of students met or exceeded 
standards in Math. 

Most students have achieved grade level within two years 
of entering an intensive intervention program. 

57% of graduates met the a-g UC/CSU entrance 
requirements. 

 

38% of students who took the Advanced Placement 
exams scored a 3 or higher. 

 



Page 13 

 

35% of juniors are recognized as “college ready” or “conditionally college 
ready” on the EAP exams in ELA or mathematics. 

 

95% of 9-12 class cohort graduate from high school. 

 

90% of students are in attendance daily, averaged over the year. 

 

Fewer than 9% of students will be classified as chronic absentees during 
the year. 

 

Fewer than 4% of middle school level students will be classified as drop 
outs during the year. 

 

Fewer than 4% of high school level students will be classified as drop 
outs during the year. 

 

Fewer than 5% of students are suspended in the year. 

 

Fewer than 1% of students are expelled in the year. 

 

65% of students who participate in California’s Physical Fitness Test 
score within the Healthy Fitness Zone in at least five of the six areas. 

 

97.5% of K-8 students demonstrate mastery of the academic skills 
needed for promotion to the next grade level at the end of the year. 

 

90% of English Learners will demonstrate improvement on their CELDT 
test and show progress toward re-designation. 

 

 

 

Due to a testing error, there were no scores documented 
for this goal to be measured. 

 

100% of 9-12 class cohort graduate from high school. 

 

94% of students are in attendance daily, average over the 
year. 

We have less than 9% of students classified as chronic 
absentees during the school year. 

 

We have had no middle school level students classified as 
drop outs during the year. 

 

We have had no high school level students classified as 
drop outs during the year. 

 

Our suspension rate is less than 5% for the year. 

 

We have had no students expelled this year. 

 

Over 65% of students scored within the HFZ in 5 of 6 
areas. 

 

100% of K-8 students demonstrate mastery of the 
academic skills needed for promotion to the next grade 
level at the end of the year. 

90% of EL students demonstrate improvement and show 
progress toward re-designation. 

 

 

 



Page 14 

90% of English Learners are reclassified Fluent English Proficient within 
eight years of initial enrollment. 

 

100% of graduates who are Agriculture Completers receive their State 
FFA Degree. 

 

30% of graduates have completed a Career Technical pathway. 

 

75% of grade 9-12 students participate in at least one extra- or co-
curricular activity. 

90% of EL students are reclassified within eight years. 

 

 

32% of graduates who are Ag Completers receive their 

State FFA Degree 

 

36% of graduates have completed a Career Technical 
pathway. 

67% of grade 9-12 students participate in at least one 
extra- or co-curricular activity. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund professional development activities for local 
program, NCLB compliance requirements, and travel 
and conference to remote professional development 
locations. 

ACTUAL 

The district continues to fund professional development activities. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 10,000 

Federal Resource 4035, Title II and/or Educator 
Effectiveness Resource 6264 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$34,360 

 



Page 15 

 
 

Acti
on        2 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund assessment program 
including ELA and math interim 
assessments and physical fitness 
testing. 

ACTUAL 

The district continues to fund all assessment programs. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 10,000  

Federal Small Rural Achievement 
Grant Resource 5811 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$ 9,380 

Acti
on        3 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Provide sections for remedial and 
enrichment courses in the high 
schools (7-12) class schedules 

ACTUAL 

District provides AP and Honors courses, online foreign 
language and computer courses.  District also provides core 
intervention courses. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$175,000 

LCFF Base, Sierra COE 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$180,000 

Action 

4 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund an Academic Advisor for 9-12 students to 
assist them in meeting academic needs according to 
their future plans. 

ACTUAL 

District continues to fund an academic advisor. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 14,000 

LCFF Base 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$11,700 



Page 16 

Action 

 5 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund intensive intervention instruction for students in 
grades K-12 ELA and mathematics during the 
school day. 

ACTUAL 

District continues to fund intensive intervention 
instruction throughout the day. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 96,000 

LCFF Base/Supplemental and Sierra County Office 
of Education 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$80,366 

Action 

    6 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund credentialed teachers for after school tutoring 
for students in grades 1-12 in all core courses.  Fund 
limited bus service for students living outside of 
walking distance of the school while attending after 
school tutoring. 

ACTUAL 

District continues to fund the after-school tutoring for 
students in grades 1-12.  Because of lack of ridership, the 
busing was not continued. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

Funded through Sierra County Office of Education 
through the Foster Youth Grant. 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$ 6,552.96 

RS7366 – Foster Youth Grant - SCOE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANALYSIS 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Empty Cell 

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 

District provided funding for college field trips (9-12), academic advising/four-year planning (9-12), 
afterschool tutoring (all schools), remedial and enrichment course (all schools), counseling 
services (all schools). 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA. 

By providing these services, a large percentage of students go off to 2 year and/or 4-year 
colleges or successful careers.  The district offers an eight-course schedule, which allows for an 
array of course offerings. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Differences between budgeted and actual expenditures have been minimal. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as 
applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

No changes have been made to this goal. 



Page 18 

Goal 3 
All stakeholders are engaged in promoting a district culture where student success is realized, communicated, and celebrated. 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

100% of subgroups are represented on the School Site Councils. 

 

Monthly SPJUSD Board of Trustees meetings are clearly indicated on the 
SPJUSD calendar and posted on the Sierra County Office of Education website 

 

65% of parents return the annual School Climate Survey. 

 

90% of students return the annual School Climate Survey. 

 

75 stakeholders participate in the Community Forums. 

80% of subgroups are represented on the School Site Councils. 

 

Monthly SPJUSD Board of Trustees meetings are clearly 
indicated. 

 

90% of parent surveys sent out were returned. 

 

100% of students surveyed returned the survey. 

 

58 stakeholders participated in the Community Forums. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 19 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund administration of student/parent school climate 
and other parent engagement surveys through the 
school sites.  Publicize results.  Schedule Community 
Forums to discuss outcomes of surveys and to 
prioritize and gather input for future LCAPs.  Explore 
ways to support School Site Council membership. 

ACTUAL 

Student/parent school climate surveys were funded.  Results are 
publicized on SCOE website.  Community forums are scheduled 
for May 2, May 10, and May 16, 2017.  

  

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

  $    750 

Federal Resource 3010, Title I, LCFF Base 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$  575 

 
 
 

 

 

Action 

2 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund counseling services for students K-12 delivered 
through Sierra County Mental Health counselors. 

ACTUAL 

District continues to fund K-12 counseling services through Sierra 
County Mental Health. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

Funded through Sierra County Office of Education 
Foster Youth Grant 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$ 60,133 

 



Page 20 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANALYSIS 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Empty Cell 

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 

Student/parent surveys give the district important feedback from our stakeholders.  This 
information gives the district important input on SPJUSD programs and services. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA. 

The counseling services have been very effective to reach students who were underserved 
previously. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Differences between budgeted and actual expenditures have been minimal. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as 
applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

The district has embellished the School Site Councils to better interface with the LCAP.  Due to 
the small parent population in general, the SSCs have given excellent feedback and direction to 
site administration in order to better serve their student population. 



Page 21 

Goal 4 
All schools and facilities are accessible, safe, and healthy places for students, staff, and community; and all classrooms are 
designed and furnished for optimal learning. 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

70% of students feel “very safe” at school based on data from the latest 
administration of the California Health Kids Survey (CHKS). 

 

3% or fewer students have been suspended or expelled because of a 
physically violent act. 

 

75% of parents and students who return School Climate Surveys have overall 
positive responses. 

 

100% of schools scored Good or Exemplary on the annual Facilities Inspection 
Tool (FIT). 

 

Evidence indicates there is a plan in the district budget for facility 
contingencies. 

 

Evidence indicates there is funding in the district budget for classroom furniture, 
fixtures. 

 

95% of students feel “very safe” at school based on the data 
from the latest CHKS. 

 

.05% were suspended because of a physically violent act.  We 
have 0 students expelled. 

 

95% of parents and students who returned the CHKS have 
overall positive responses. 

 

100% of schools scored Good or Exemplary on the annual 
Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT). 

 

Although there is not a designated budget item for deferred 
maintenance, the SPJUSD budgets for needed facility 
enhancements. 

Many purchase orders have been processed to better equip 
classrooms throughout the district. 

 
 
 



Page 22 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Funding for maintenance and custodial staff and all 
costs necessary to care for school buildings, 
grounds, and classrooms to provide a safe 
environment for student, staff, and visitors.   

Function 8100 

ACTUAL 

The district continues to have funding for maintenance and 
custodial staff. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$740,000 

LCFF 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$776,990 

 

 

Action 

2 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Fund training for students and staff in programs that 
promote school climate and student safety. 

ACTUAL 

District continues to fund training/implementation of the Peace 
Builder/Peace Mediator program.  School assemblies and guest 
speakers that address school climate and student safety are held 
throughout the school year. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

  $  5,000 

LCFF Base 

 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$  4,750 



Page 23 

 
 

 

 

Action 

3 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Facility repairs to include roof, HVAC, and Loyalton 
High School Bathroom. 

ACTUAL 

The district continues to make repairs as needed.  Lighting 
project through Prop 39 will be completed this school year. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$475,000  

LCFF Base and State Prop 39 

Resource 6230 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$180,000 

 

 

Action 

4 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Develop a plan to replace classroom furnishings 
and technology on a regular basis and budget 
accordingly. 

ACTUAL 
Replacement of classroom furnishings and technology is an 
ongoing process. 
 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 20,000 

LCFF Base, Non-Prop 20 Lottery  

Resource 1100 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$ 27,358 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 24 

Goal 5 
Foster and expelled students receive instruction and services to support their intellectual, social, emotional, and physical 
development.  (Sierra County Office of Education – SCOE) 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

96% of expelled students will meet their academic needs through alternative 
pathways. 

 

96% of foster parents will indicate that foster youth are being served 
appropriately. 

 

92% of school registrars will be trained to meet enrollment and withdrawal 
requirements of foster youth including efficient expeditious transfer of health 
and education records and the health and education passport. 

 

92% of school administrators will work closely with school secretaries to ensure 
that requests from the juvenile court and/or county child welfare agencies for 
information regarding delivery and coordination of educational services for 
foster youth be quickly and efficiently communicated between agencies. 

 

85% of schools will have identified and trained an instructional aide to serve as 
an academic mentor/coach to foster students. 

We had no expelled students. 

 

 

100% of foster parents have indicated that foster youth are 
being served appropriately. 

 

100% of school registrars have been trained. 

 

 

100% of school administrators are working closely with school 
secretaries. 

 

 

 

100% of schools have identified and trained instructional aides 
to serve as an academic mentor/coach to foster students. 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 25 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Continue to support Visual and Performing Arts 
(VAPA) in all schools.  Provide matching funds for 
Artists in the Schools provided through Sierra County 
Arts Council.  Grant funds are used at all school sites 
except Sierra Pass Continuation High School. 

ACTUAL 

The district continues to fund Visual and Performing Arts in all 
schools. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$  5,000 

Forest Reserve Revenue, Unrestricted  

Resource 0000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$  4,900 

 

 

Action 

2 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Continue to support Career Technical Education in 
grades 7-12 through employment of 
Construction/Woodshop teacher and Career 
Specialist and by funding supplies for greenhouses 
and construction classes 

ACTUAL 

The district continues to support Career Technical Education in 
grades 7-12. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

 $ 57,000 

LCFF Base, EPA  

Resource 1400 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$ 40,800 

 
 
 



Page 26 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

3 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Continue to expand Career Technical Education 
opportunities and pathways by expanding use of 
greenhouses and garden programs to K-12 Science, 
health, and sustainable agriculture projects. 

ACTUAL 

All schools in the district now have greenhouses and garden 
programs. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$  7,000 

LCFF Base, EPA  

Resource 1400 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$  7,000 

 

 

Action 

4 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Continue to have Foster Youth Service Coordinator 
handle annual staff training and establish a 
mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of 
health and education records and the health and 
education passport. 

ACTUAL 

The district continues to train and maintain the efficient 
expeditious transfer of health and education records of foster 
youth. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$  2,000 

Foster Youth Program 

Resource 7366 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$  1,800 

 
 
 
 



Page 27 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

5 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Provide certificated and classified staff for students 
with Individualized Education Programs (IEPs), 
provide a School Psychologist for all students as 
needed, and provide contracted services as needed 
for students with IEPs. 

ACTUAL 

The district continues to provide staff for students with IEPs and 
continues to provide a school psychologist. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$664,000 

Federal Resources 3315 & 3320 

State Special Education Resource 6500 

LCFF Base 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$429,302 

 

 

 
 



Page 28 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANALYSIS 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Empty Cell 

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 

Foster Youth advisory overseas that Foster Youth and expelled students are receiving instruction 
and services to support their intellectual, social, emotional, and physical development. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA. 

We have a very small number of foster youth attending the schools in our county and the one 
foster family that has been here since the beginning of the school year has requested that we do 
not label their children as foster youth or provide any special services.  They are, however, able 
to assess all services that are available to all children in the district. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Differences between budgeted and actual expenditures have been minimal. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as 
applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

No changes to this goal.  We will continue to train personnel to meet enrollment and withdrawal 
requirements, school administrators will continue to work with school secretaries to ensure that all 
requested information is efficiently communicated between agencies.  Because we are a single 
district/county, this county goal will be included in the district LCAP in the future. 



Page 29 

 
 

Goal 6 
Foster and expelled students engage in a rigorous curriculum and acquire the knowledge, critical thinking skills, and 
characteristics needed for success in college, career, and life. (SCOE) 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

87% or more of foster students will be in attendance daily, average over the 
year. 

 

87% or more of expelled students will make adequate progress toward 
graduation in alternative settings. 

 

4% or fewer of students will be expelled during the year. 

 

95% of foster students will demonstrate mastery of the academic skills needed 
for promotion to the next grade level at the end of the year. 

 

87% of foster and expelled students in grades K-9 will receive instruction in 
health using the adopted curriculum. 

 

85% of foster youth and expelled students will participate in a physical 
education program. 

 

65% of foster students in grades 9-12 will participate in athletics or extra-
curricular activities. 

95% of foster students are in attendance daily. 

 

 

We have no expelled students. 

 

 

We have no expelled students. 

 

95% of foster students demonstrate mastery of academic skills. 

 

All foster youth and expelled students receive instruction in 
health. 

 

 

All foster youth and expelled students participate in the required 
physical education program. 

 

We had no foster youth in grades 9-12 for this school year. 

 



Page 30 

 

85% of foster and expelled students who need intensive intervention in ELA or 
mathematics will be enrolled in a qualified intervention program. 

 

All foster youth or expelled students who need intensive 
intervention are enrolled in a qualified intervention program. 

 
 
 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Professional Learning Community (PLC) activities 
are scheduled in the school calendar.  Certificated 
staff attends professional development 
programs/conferences. 

ACTUAL 

The district provides PLC activities monthly. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$  2,500 

RSDSS 

Resource 3020 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$  6,636 from Resource 3020 

 

 

Action 

2 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Continue to fund instructional aides to work with 
exceptional need students. 

ACTUAL 

The district continues to fund instructional aides to work with 
exceptional need students. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$ 69,000 

Federal Resources 3310 & 3320 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$107,028 

Salaries & Benefits for instructional aides in Resources 3310 & 
3320, 6500, 7366 



Page 31 

State Special Ed Resource 6500 

Foster Youth Resource 7366 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ANALYSIS 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Empty Cell 

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 

Foster Youth advisory overseas that Foster Youth and expelled students are engage in a rigorous 
curriculum and acquire the knowledge, critical thinking skills, and characteristics needed for 
success in college, career, and life.  

Describe the overall effectiveness of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA. 

We have a very small number of foster youth attending the schools in our county and the one 
foster family that has been here since the beginning of the school year has requested that we do 
not label their children as foster youth or provide any special services.  They are, however, able to 
assess all services that are available to all children in the district. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Differences between budgeted and actual expenditures have been minimal. 

 

Describe any changes made to this goal, 
expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this 
analysis and analysis of the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP. 

Because we are a single district/county, this county goal will be included in the district LCAP in 
the future.  The school administrators will work closely with the teachers to ensure that a rigorous 
curriculum is being provided to all students in the district/county. 



Page 32 

Goal 7 
All stakeholders are involved in promoting a district culture where foster youth and expelled students realize success and that 
success is communicated and celebrated.   (SCOE) 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

60 stakeholders will attend one of three annual Community Forums to provide 
input for the LCAP. 

 

96% of County staff will receive training related to coordinated services for 
foster youth and expelled students and will gain information and tools to 
minimize changes in school placement of foster youth. 

 

58 stakeholders attended the Community Forums. 

 

 

The district provided training to the Foster Youth Liaison 
representative. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 33 

 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Continue to promote and host Community Forums, 
maintain County website, contract for 
telecommunications equipment and services, and 
provide for communication with stakeholders. 

ACTUAL 

The district continues to promote and fund the Community 
Forums, the County website, the contract for telecommunications 
equipment and services, and promotes communication with 
stakeholders throughout the year. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

$120,000 

LCFF Base 

Resource 0000 

Forest Reserves Revenue Unrestricted 

Resource 0000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$126,000 

Contracted services for web maintenance, web hosting, 
telecommunications & equipment. Communication with 
stakeholders. 

 

 



Page 34 

 

ANALYSIS 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Empty Cell 

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 

Three community forums were held in the spring to present to the stakeholders the new LCAP 
goals, the state of the schools, and to receive input into improvements that could be made in 
all schools of the district. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 

The community forums are well attended for a small community.  Because our district/county 
is so small we have a wonderful opportunity to meet casually with stakeholders at different 
school functions throughout the year and hear their concerns and/or suggestions to make our 
schools even better than they are now. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. 

Differences between budgeted and actual expenditures have been minimal. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, 
expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this 
analysis and analysis of the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP. 

Because we are a single district/county, this county goal will be included in the district LCAP in 
the future.  We will continue to hold community forums during the school year to get input from 
our stakeholders.  We also will encourage stakeholders to attend school functions and to feel 
free to speak with administrators, teachers, and other staff regarding their concerns. 



Page 35 

 

Goal 8 
The educational outcomes of foster youth will mirror those of the general student population.   (SCOE) 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this 
goal: 

STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

Gap between foster youth and general student population will decrease by 
10% with regard to attendance rates; school discipline rates; standardized 
testing participation rates; standardized test scores; course passage rates 
with C or higher; A-G enrollment and passage rates; AP and CTE enrollment 
and passage rates; dropout rates; graduation rates. 

 

The district continues to support foster youth education to 
decrease the gap between foster youth and general student 
population. 

 

 

 



Page 36 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

For foster youth:  Establish policy and data 
infrastructure necessary to support and monitor 
educational success. 

ACTUAL 

Policy and data infrastructure for foster youth has been 
established. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

District level liaison and oversight staff. 

Foster Youth Grant Resource 7366 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

$    200 

 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

2 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

For foster youth:  Allocate funds for tutoring and 
other academic supports; transportation; and costs 
for sports and extracurricular programs.  (Phase in 
funding as LEA moves toward providing school 
counselor services to 100% of foster youth.) 

ACTUAL 

The district continues to fund the afterschool tutoring program at a  
schools and the costs for sports and extracurricular programs.   

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

Funds for transportation and priority access to 
tutoring, enrichment programs, sports and 
extracurricular activities (for at least 50% of foster 
youth). 

Foster Youth Grant Resource 7366 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

-0- 

 

 

 

 



Page 37 

 
 

 
 

 
 

ANALYSIS 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Empty Cell 

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 

We are seeing no gap between our foster youth and our general population in educational 
outcomes at this time. 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA. 

Foster youth school attendance has been excellent, no discipline issues, state testing 
participation and scores are within the norm of the general population, and grades are good.  The 
afterschool tutoring has been successful for all students.  All students are encouraged to 
participate in sports and extra-curricular activities. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Differences between budgeted and actual expenditures have been minimal. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as 
applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

Because we are a single district/county, this county goal will be included in the district LCAP in 
the future.  The district/school administrators will work closely with the teachers to ensure foster 
youth are getting the same education outcomes as the general student population. 



Page 38 

 

 

 

Goal 9 
Decreased transfer of foster youth to continuation and other alternative schools and decreased school transfer of foster youth 
after a change in home placement. (SCOE) 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

District will have policies and MOUs regarding reducing foster youth school 
transfers, the infrastructure necessary to measure these metrics, and baseline 
data on these metrics. 

District has created policies to reduce foster youth transfers. 



Page 39  

 

 

 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Develop and implement policy ensuring: 

 

(a) At the time of any enrollment/disenrollment 
of a foster youth, there is a meaningful 
consideration of school of origin options 
with the education rights holder and the 
youth. 

(b) District data system tracks types of schools 
foster youth are enrolled in, reasons for 
enrollment, and how many youth remain 
enrolled in their school of origin after a 
home placement change. 

(c) District staff coordinate with county child 
welfare and probation agencies and COE 
FYS at time of any home placement 
change to ensure youth are placed within a 
reasonable distance of their school or 
origin whenever possible. 

(d) District allocates sufficient funds to meet 
transportation needs to allow foster youth 
to remain at school origin.  

ACTUAL 

 

 

The district has developed and implemented these policies. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

District-level liaison and oversight staff. 

Funds for transportation when needed to allow 
foster youth to remain in school of origin. 

Foster Youth Grant Resource 7366 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

-0- 

 

 

 



Page 40 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANALYSIS 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Empty Cell 

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 

Policies have been put into place to reduce foster youth transfers.   

Describe the overall effectiveness of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA. 

We have had no foster youth transferred from our comprehensive high school to our continuation 
high school.  Sufficient funds have been allocated in case the need arises for a student to be 
transported to keep them in their school of origin. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Differences between budgeted and actual expenditures have been minimal. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, 
expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this 
analysis and analysis of the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP. 

Because we are a single district/county, this county goal will be included in the district LCAP in the 
future.  The district/school administrators and the foster youth liaison will work closely with the 
teachers to ensure that foster youth are not being transferred to our continuation school and that 
we will ensure that foster youth are allowed to stay at their school of origin if they choose. 



Page 41 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Goal 10 
Transferring foster youth will be promptly enrolled in the appropriate school and classes and awarded credit for all work 
completed, including partial credits.   (SCOE) 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

District will have policies and MOUs regarding promptly enrolling and awarding partial 
credit to transferring foster youth, the infrastructure necessary to measure these 
metrics, and baseline data on these metrics. 

District has created policies regarding promptly enrolling 
and awarding partial credit to transferring foster youth. 



Page 42 

 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

Develop and implement a policy ensuring: 

 

(a) Foster youth are immediately enrolled in 
their local comprehensive school unless an 
education rights holder agrees in writing 
that placement at an alternative school site 
is in the student’s best interest, and are 
enrolled in the same/equivalent grade and 
classes. 

(b) Partial credits are immediately issued and 
accepted when foster youth transfer mid-
semester, and the district’s student 
information system allows for issuance of 
partial credits. 

(c) The district’s data system collects 
aggregated data on the 
issuance/acceptance of partial credits. 

ACTUAL 

 

 

The district has developed and implemented these policies. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

District-level liaison and oversight staff. 

Foster Youth Grant Resource 7366 

 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

-0- 

 

 



Page 43 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANALYSIS 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Empty Cell 

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 

Policies have been put into place that will assure that foster youth are promptly enrolled and all 
applicable credits, including partial credits are awarded.  

Describe the overall effectiveness of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA. 

We have had no high school foster youth this year, therefore, no credits have been awarded.  The 
foster youth enrolled were placed promptly into their new school upon arrival. 

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Differences between budgeted and actual expenditures have been minimal. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, 
expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this 
analysis and analysis of the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP. 

Because we are a single district/county, this county goal will be included in the district LCAP in the 
future.  The district/school administrators and foster youth liaison will work closely with the 
teachers to ensure that students are enrolled promptly and that they awarded all credits earned. 



Page 44 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Goal 11 
Foster youth will receive a comprehensive education assessment and will receive any services or supports needed.   (SCOE) 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

50% of all foster youth will receive a comprehensive education history and needs 
assessment and will receive any needed services or supports. 

All foster youth receive a comprehensive education history 
and needs assessment and receive needed services and/or 
supports. 



Page 45 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

At least 50% of foster youth will receive 
educational case management from a designated 
counselor with the skills, time and training, 
including in trauma-informed strategies, necessary 
to fully meet the needs of foster Youth Foster 
youth counselors’ caseloads should be limited to a 
number consistent with these responsibilities and 
recommended not to exceed 50. 

ACTUAL 

The district Foster Youth numbers are so low that counselors are 
able to meet their needs effectively. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

District-level liaison and oversight staff and 
sufficient school-site-level counselors to serve at 
least 50% of foster youth at ratio no higher than 
1:50. 

Foster Youth Grant Resource 7366 

Contracted Services 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

-0- 

 

 



Page 46 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANALYSIS 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Empty Cell 

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 

Any foster youth that come to our district will immediately receive educational case management 
from a designated counselor with the skills, time and training, including in trauma-informed 
strategies, necessary to fully meet the needs of foster 

Describe the overall effectiveness of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA. 

Foster youth numbers are so low in our district/county that our counselors are able to meet their 
needs effectively.  

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Differences between budgeted and actual expenditures have been minimal. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, 
expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this 
analysis and analysis of the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP. 

Because we are a single district/county, this county goal will be included in the district LCAP in 
the future.  The district/school administrators and foster youth liaison will work closely with the 
counselors to ensure that students are receiving all educational and trauma needs that may be 
necessary. 



Page 47 

 

 

 

 

 

Goal 12 
Foster youth will have access to academic and socio-emotional resources and supports on at least an equal basis as other 
students. (SCOE) 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL __N/A____________________________________ 

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

 

EXPECTED ACTUAL 

Foster youth will participate in school-site and district level academic support 
programs (tutoring, after school and summer enrichment, etc.) socio-emotional 
supports (attendance monitoring and support, Positive Behavior Interventions and 
Supports, restorative justice and Social Emotional Learning, school-based health 
and mental health service, extracurricular activities and sports, etc.) at least at the 
same participation rate as the general student population. 

All foster youth are given the opportunity to participate in 
school-site and district level academic support programs. 



Page 48 

 

 

 

ACTIONS / SERVICES 

 

Action 

1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

Actions/Services 

PLANNED 

District-level and school site staff will track 
participation data and work with program staff to 
ensure foster youth have equal access to all 
academic and socio-emotional supports provided to 
students, including: 

(a) Tutoring & academic enrichment programs 

(b) Summer school/credit recovery 

(c) Academic Counseling 

(d) Positive Behavior Interventions and 
Supports, Restorative Justice, Social 
Emotional Learning, Health/Mental Health 
Services. 

(e) Sports and other extracurricular activities 

(f) Career pathways and linked learning 
opportunities 

ACTUAL 

The district Foster Youth numbers are so low it is easy to track 
participation and progress in all areas. 

Expenditures 

BUDGETED 

District-level liaison and oversight staff; Funds for 
transportation and priority access to tutoring 
enrichment programs, sports and extracurricular 
activities. 

Foster Youth Grant Resource 7366 

 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

-0- 

 

 



Page 49 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANALYSIS 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Empty Cell 

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 

After school tutoring is offered to all students in need of academic support.  All foster youth are 
given the opportunity to participate in school-site and district-level support programs.   

Describe the overall effectiveness of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA. 

The district Foster Youth numbers are so low it is easy to track participation and progress in all 
areas.   

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

Differences between budgeted and actual expenditures have been minimal. 

Describe any changes made to this goal, 
expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this 
analysis and analysis of the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP. 

Because we are a single district/county, this county goal will be included in the district LCAP in 
the future.  The district/school administrators and foster youth liaison will work closely with the 
teachers to ensure that FY students are enrolled in district-level support programs. 



Page 50 

Stakeholder Engagement 
LCAP 
Year 

 2017–18  2018–19  2019–20 

Empty Cell 

INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE 

How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis? 

In May 2017, community forums were held at all three campuses in the district to discuss the state of the schools and our LCAP with excellent 
community participation.  These meetings are very informal and give the superintendent an opportunity to report out on the state of the schools and 
hear what the community sees as needs for our schools.  School Site Councils have good participation from parents, students, and staff.  They meet 
regularly at all three campuses.  Being such a small community, we also have many opportunities to visit with parents, students, and community 
members during local functions throughout the year.  

IMPACT ON LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE 

How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year? 

Stakeholders were able to voice their concerns in a friendly atmosphere and also let the administration know what is going well.  Input and concern for 
early out Wednesdays and loss of instructional time was discussed.  How the district will address the ongoing budget concerns was also discussed.  
The stakeholders also brought up their concerns regarding quality staff recruitment and keeping good quality teachers at our schools.  Future 
retirements of teachers were also discussed.  

 



Page 51 

Goals, Actions, & Services 

 

Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.  

  New                               Modified  Unchanged 

Goal 1 
All students receive instruction and services to support their intellectual, social, emotional, and physical development. 

ty Cell 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL ______________________________________ 

Identified Need  After school tutoring program is reviewed and evaluated throughout the year. 

Counseling services are reviewed and evaluated. 

Discipline issues are reviewed and evaluated. 

EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Number of 
counseling hours 

East side – 6 hours 

West side – 4 hours 

East side – 8 hours 

West side – 6 hours 

East side – 8 hours 

West side – 6 hours 

East side – 8 hours 

West side – 6 hours 

Number of discipline 
log entries in 
PowerSchool 

467 log entries for 2016/17 
Reduce log entries by 10% 
from baseline 

Reduce log entries by 20% 
from baseline 

Reduce log entries by 30% 
from baseline 

Teacher log of 
students in 
afterschool tutoring 

DES/DHS – averaged 22 
students per week 

LES – averaged 30 students 
per week 

LHS – averaged 3 students 
per week 

Continue to serve students 
in the tutoring program. 

Continue to serve students 
in the tutoring program. 

Continue to serve students in 
the tutoring program. 

 



Page 52 

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

 

Action 1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served  All          Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)]___________________  

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served     English Learners          Foster Youth          Low Income 

Scope of Services 
 LEA-wide          Schoolwide         OR           Limited to Unduplicated Student 

Group(s) 

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

ACTIONS/SERVICES 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 New     Modified      Unchanged   New     Modified      Unchanged  New      Modified       Unchanged 

District will increase the hours of our Sierra County 
Mental Health services to better meet the needs of our 
identified students.  

District will maintain or increase as 
needed the hours of our Sierra County 
Mental Health services to better meet 
the needs of our identified students. 

District will maintain or increase as needed the 
hours of our Sierra County Mental Health 
services to better meet the needs of our 
identified students. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES Empty Cell Empty Cell 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Amount $  4,293 Amount $   4,293 Amount $   4,293 

Source 
IDEA Mental Health  

Resource 3327 
Source 

IDEA Mental Health  

Resource 3327 
Source 

IDEA Mental Health  

Resource 3327 



Page 53 

Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 

Action 2 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served  All          Students with Disabilities       [Specific Student Group(s)]___________________  

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served     English Learners          Foster Youth          Low Income 

Scope of Services 
 LEA-wide          Schoolwide         OR           Limited to Unduplicated Student 

Group(s) 

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

ACTIONS/SERVICES 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 New     Modified      Unchanged   New     Modified      Unchanged  New      Modified       Unchanged 

Implement a Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 
that is data driven throughout the district to address 
the needs of all students by aligning district initiatives, 
supports, and resources to improve student outcomes. 

Continue the Multi-tiered System of 
Supports (MTSS) that is data driven 
throughout the district to address the 
needs of all students by aligning district 
initiatives, supports, and resources to 
improve student outcomes. 

Continue the Multi-tiered System of Supports 
(MTSS) that is data driven throughout the district 
to address the needs of all students by aligning 
district initiatives, supports, and resources to 
improve student outcomes. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES Empty Cell Empty Cell 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Amount -0- Amount -0- Amount -0- 

Source  Source  Source  



Page 54 

Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 

 
 
 
Action 

 
3 

Empty Cell Empty Cell 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served  All          Students with Disabilities       [Specific Student Group(s)]___________________  

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served     English Learners          Foster Youth          Low Income 

Scope of Services 
 LEA-wide          Schoolwide         OR           Limited to Unduplicated Student 

Group(s) 

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

ACTIONS/SERVICES 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 New     Modified      Unchanged   New     Modified      Unchanged  New      Modified       Unchanged 

Fund credentialed teachers for after school tutoring for 
all students in grades 1-12 in all core courses. 

Fund credentialed teachers for after 
school tutoring for all students in grades  
1-12 in all core courses. 

Fund credentialed teachers for after school 
tutoring for all students in grades 1-12 in all core 
courses. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES Empty Cell Empty Cell 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Amount $ 87,000 Amount $ 89,000 Amount $ 91,000 

Source Title 1, Resource 3010 Source Title 1, Resource 3010 Source Title 1, Resource 3010 

Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 



Page 55 

 

  New                               Modified                                     Unchanged 

Goal 2 

All students will engage in a rigorous, standards based curriculum and acquire the knowledge, critical thinking skills, and 
characteristics needed for success in college, career, and life. 

Empty Cell 

Empty Cell 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL ______________________________________ 

Identified Need  Curriculum is reviewed yearly to determine if the district is offering the most current state adopted 
materials that are aligned with the CCSS. 

The district reviews the courses that are being offered to determine if the students have a broad 
course of study available. 

EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Social Science and 
Science CCSS 
aligned curriculum 
are reviewed 

ELA and Math curriculum 
have been adopted 

Science curriculum will be 
reviewed. 

Science curriculum will be 
adopted and Social Science 
curriculum will be reviewed. 

Social Science curriculum will 
be adopted. 

State testing ELA 
45% of students met or 
exceeded standards 

50% of students will meet 
or exceed standards 

55% of students will meet 
or exceed standards 

60% of students will meet or 
exceed standards. 

State testing Math 
42% of students met or 
exceeded standards 

47% of students will meet 
or exceed standards 

52% of students will meet 
or exceed standards 

57% of students will meet or 
exceed standards 



Page 56 

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

 

Action 1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served  All          Students with Disabilities       [Specific Student Group(s)]___________________  

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served     English Learners          Foster Youth          Low Income 

Scope of Services 
 LEA-wide          Schoolwide         OR           Limited to Unduplicated Student 

Group(s) 

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

ACTIONS/SERVICES 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 New     Modified      Unchanged   New     Modified      Unchanged  New      Modified       Unchanged 

Textbook adoption committee will be formed to 
review Science curriculum. 

Science curriculum will be adopted and 
implemented. 

Science curriculum will continue to be 
implemented. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES Empty Cell Empty Cell 

2017-18 LCFF Base, Unrestricted Supplemental 2019-20 

Amount 
LCFF Base, Unrestricted 
Supplemental 

Amount $   1,000 Amount $   1,000 

Source 
LCFF Base, Unrestricted 
Supplemental Source 

LCFF Base, Unrestricted 
Supplemental 

Source 
LCFF Base, Unrestricted 
Supplemental 

Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 



Page 57 

 
 

Action 2 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served  All          Students with Disabilities       [Specific Student Group(s)]___________________  

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served     English Learners          Foster Youth          Low Income 

Scope of Services  LEA-wide          Schoolwide         OR           Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s) 

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

ACTIONS/SERVICES 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 New     Modified      Unchanged   New     Modified      Unchanged  New      Modified       Unchanged 

Available Social Science curriculum will be 
reviewed. 

Textbook adoption committee will be 
formed to review Social Science curriculum. 

Social Science curriculum will be adopted and 
implemented. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES Empty Cell Empty Cell 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Amount $ 36,000 Amount $ 40,000 Amount $ 40,000 

Source 
LCFF Base, Unrestricted 
Supplemental 

Source 
LCFF Base, Unrestricted 
Supplemental 

Source 
LCFF Base, Unrestricted 
Supplemental 

Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 

 
 
 



Page 58 

 

Action 3 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served  All          Students with Disabilities       [Specific Student Group(s)]___________________  

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served     English Learners          Foster Youth          Low Income 

Scope of Services  LEA-wide          Schoolwide         OR           Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s) 

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

ACTIONS/SERVICES 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 New     Modified      Unchanged   New     Modified      Unchanged  New      Modified       Unchanged 

Increase ELA test results by 5% over baseline Increase ELA test results by 10% over baseline Increase ELA test results by 15% over baseline 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES Empty Cell Empty Cell 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Amount $   2,000 Amount $   3,000 Amount $   4,000 

Source LCFF Base, Unrestricted  Source LCFF Base, Unrestricted Source LCFF Base, Unrestricted 

Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 59 

Action 4 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served  All          Students with Disabilities       [Specific Student Group(s)]___________________  

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served     English Learners          Foster Youth          Low Income 

Scope of Services  LEA-wide          Schoolwide         OR           Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s) 

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

ACTIONS/SERVICES 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 New     Modified      Unchanged   New     Modified      Unchanged  New      Modified       Unchanged 

Increase Math test results by 5% over baseline Increase Math test results by 10% over 
baseline 

Increase Math test results by 15% over baseline 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES Empty Cell Empty Cell 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Amount $ 10,000 Amount $ 12,500 Amount $ 15,000 

Source 
LCFF Base, Unrestricted 
Supplemental 

Source 
LCFF Base, Unrestricted 
Supplemental 

Source 
LCFF Base, Unrestricted 
Supplemental 

Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 

 
 
 
 



Page 60 

 

 
 New                               Modified                                     Unchanged 

Goal 3 

All staff will engage in professional development opportunities that enhance their knowledge of subject matter frameworks 
and standards, as well as deepening their skill-set in current instructional delivery. 

Empty Cell 

Empty Cell 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL ______________________________________ 

Identified Need   

EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Records indicating 
how many staff 
attend professional 
development 

50% of staff has engaged 
in professional 
opportunities. 

75% of staff will engage in 
professional development. 

85% of staff will engage in 
professional development 

95% of staff will engage in 
professional development. 

     

     



Page 61 

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

 

Action 1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served  All          Students with Disabilities       [Specific Student Group(s)]___________________  

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served     English Learners          Foster Youth          Low Income 

Scope of Services  LEA-wide          Schoolwide         OR           Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s) 

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

ACTIONS/SERVICES 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 New     Modified      Unchanged   New     Modified      Unchanged  New      Modified       Unchanged 

District will fund professional development  District will continue to fund professional 
development. 

District will continue to fund professional 
development. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES Empty Cell Empty Cell 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Amount $ 14,404 Amount $ 14,404 Amount $ 14,404 

Source Title 2, Resource 4035 Source Title 2, Resource 4035 Source Title 2, Resource 4035 

Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 

 



Page 62 

 
 
 
 

  New                               Modified                                     Unchanged 

Goal 4 

All schools and facilities are accessible, safe, and healthy places for students, staff, and community; and all classrooms are 
designed and furnished for optimal learning. 

Empty Cell 

Empty Cell 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL ______________________________________ 

Identified Need  Each year administrators review facilities to make sure they are maintained at a sufficient level to 
provide for clean and safe facilities.  This review needs to be completed each year.   

Classrooms are reviewed to insure that they are adequately equipped with furnishings and 
technology to support student learning. 

EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Review of budget 
District has a plan for 
facility contingencies. 

Evidence indicates there is 
a plan in the district budget 
for facility contingencies. 

Evidence indicates there is 
a plan in the district budget 
for facility contingencies. 

Evidence indicates there is a 
plan in the district budget for 
facility contingencies. 

Facility Inspection 
Tool 

LHS – fair or better in all 
areas except external 

LES – fair or better in all 
areas except systems and 
external 

SELPA – all areas good 
except structural 

Portables – all fair or better 

DES – all fair or better 

LHS, LES, SELPA,  – all 
areas will receive fair or 
better rating. 

 

Portables, DES, DHS will 
continue to maintain or 
improve their fair or better 
rating. 

 

All sites will receive a rating 
of fair or better. 

 

 

Portables, DES, DHS will 
continue to maintain or 
improve their fair or better 
rating. 

 

All sites will receive a rating 
of fair or better. 

 

 

Portables, DES, DHS will 
continue to maintain or 
improve their fair or better 
rating. 

 



Page 63 

DHS – all fair or better  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Superintendent/site 
administrators 
review of classroom 
needs 

LES classrooms updated 
furniture such as chairs, 
tables, easels, 
bookshelves, and new 
dividers to be used by all 
classrooms when needed. 

DES/DHS also purchased 
new tables and chairs for 
classrooms. 

Continue deferred 
maintenance schedule as 
planned. 

Continue deferred 
maintenance schedule as 
planned. 

Continue deferred 
maintenance schedule as 
planned. 



Page 64 

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

 

Action 1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served  All          Students with Disabilities       [Specific Student Group(s)]___________________  

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served     English Learners          Foster Youth          Low Income 

Scope of Services  LEA-wide          Schoolwide         OR           Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s) 

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

ACTIONS/SERVICES 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 New     Modified      Unchanged   New     Modified      Unchanged  New      Modified       Unchanged 

District will continue to perform an annual 
inspection of facilities through the Facilities 
Inspection Tool.  All schools will receive a rating of 
fair or better in all areas. 

District will continue to perform an annual 
inspection of facilities through the Facilities 
Inspection Tool.  All schools will receive a 
rating of fair or better in all areas. 

District will continue to perform an annual 
inspection of facilities through the Facilities 
Inspection Tool.  All schools will receive a rating 
of fair or better in all areas. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES Empty Cell Empty Cell 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Amount -0- Amount -0- Amount -0- 

Source  Source  Source  

Budget  Budget  Budget  



Page 65 

Reference Reference Reference 

 

Action 2 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served  All          Students with Disabilities       [Specific Student Group(s)]___________________  

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served     English Learners          Foster Youth          Low Income 

Scope of Services  LEA-wide          Schoolwide         OR           Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s) 

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

ACTIONS/SERVICES 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 New     Modified      Unchanged   New     Modified      Unchanged  New      Modified       Unchanged 

District will continue to review classrooms for need 
of furniture and technology needs. 

District will continue to review classrooms 
for need of furniture and technology needs. 

District will continue to review classrooms for 
need of furniture and technology needs. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES Empty Cell Empty Cell 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Amount $156,000 Amount $156,000 Amount $156,000 

Source 
LCFF Base and Non-Prop 20 

Lottery Resource 1100 
Source 

LCFF Base and Non-Prop 20 

Lottery Resource 1100 
Source 

LCFF Base and Non-Prop 20 

Lottery Resource 1100 

Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 

 
 



Page 66 

  New                               Modified                                     Unchanged 

Goal 5 

Foster youth and expelled students receive instruction and services to support their intellectual, social emotional, and 
physical development.  (SCOE) 

Empty Cell 

Empty Cell 

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8    

COE  9  10 

LOCAL ______________________________________ 

Identified Need  District reviews each year if any students were expelled and if they are receiving appropriate 
educational pathways. 

District will review each year if any foster youth were enrolled and that they are receiving 
appropriate placement and services. 

EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Enrollment records 
We have no expelled 
students. 

District will continue to 
review expelled students 
and services offered. 

District will continue to 
review expelled students 
and services offered. 

District will continue to review 
expelled students and 
services offered. 

Enrollment records 
Only 2 foster youth 
enrolled at this time 

District will continue to 
review that appropriate 
services are being offered 
to foster youth 

District will continue to 
review that appropriate 
services are being offered 
to foster youth 

District will continue to review 
that appropriate services are 
being offered to foster youth 

# of foster parents in 
county 

No TIPS-MAPP (Trauma 
Informed Partnering for 
Safety and Permanence-
Model Approach To 
Partnerships in Parenting) 
completed this year. 

Provide TIPS-MAPP 
training 

Evaluate results of training 
& continue foster parent 
certification 

Evaluate results of training & 
continue foster parent 
certification 



Page 67 

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES 

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 

 

Action 1 Empty Cell Empty Cell 

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served  All          Students with Disabilities       [Specific Student Group(s)]___________________  

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

OR 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

Students to be Served     English Learners          Foster Youth          Low Income 

Scope of Services  LEA-wide          Schoolwide         OR           Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s) 

Location(s)  All schools          Specific Schools:___________________       Specific Grade spans:__________________ 

ACTIONS/SERVICES 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 New     Modified      Unchanged   New     Modified      Unchanged  New      Modified       Unchanged 

District will continue to provide a foster youth 
liaison to monitor services. 

District will continue to provide a foster 
youth liaison to monitor services. 

District will continue to provide a foster youth 
liaison to monitor services. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES Empty Cell Empty Cell 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Amount $  6,200 Amount $  6,300 Amount $  6,500 

Source 
Foster Youth, Unrestricted 
General Fund 

Source 
Foster Youth, Unrestricted 
General Fund 

Source 
Foster Youth, Unrestricted 
General Fund 

Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 
Budget 
Reference 

 

 



Page 68 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 

LCAP Year  2017–18    2018–19    2019–20 

 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: $  
Percentage to Increase or Improve 
Services: 

2.5 % 

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or quantitatively, 
as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  

 

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions). 

 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District/Sierra County Office of Education 2016-17 reported an unduplicated student count of 159, determined 
using the rolling average calculation.  The District used the funding provided through the Local Control Funding Formula along with significant 
funding from the general fund and other sources to provide for the district’s major goals of providing all students in Grades K-12 with academic 
instruction and practice in English Language Arts and Mathematics to enable all students to achieve academic success in all core areas and to 
leave our schools as high school graduates with transition plans for productive futures.  A major focus of our funding has been to provide students 
with the support they need to gain the skills in elementary school to be able to access the more rigorous core areas in high school.  This is 
accomplished in a major way through funding professional development for staff, hiring an intervention instructor to work closely with teachers and 
students, and providing paraprofessionals to support struggling learners.  Funding is also provided to ensure that schools are inviting, safe places 
for students to learn.  Other major school goals include efforts to cultivate programs and activities that support student physical, social, and 
emotional growth and development.  While we have few English Learners and even fewer foster youth, these groups are supported directly and 
immediately through the use of paraprofessionals, research based intervention programs, and classroom instruction that is designed to meet the 
varying needs of students.  Because of the small school sizes we enjoy in our district, programs we design for our unduplicated student population 
are often available to the general student population.  Students who may not qualify as Title I students but who need support, find that they are able 
to be included in support programs because of the small population.  English Learners and Foster Youth are welcomed and frequently joined by 
other students who also benefit from the support they are provided.  In high schools, major efforts are given to providing intervention, remediation, 
and enrichment courses even when only a small number of students need or desire the courses.  Response to Intervention occurs quickly and 
students do not maintain poor attendance or poor academic achievement without notice.  This has allowed our schools to enjoy high graduation and 
low truancy rates.  Our efforts at developing school culture have resulted in no expulsions for several years and a very low suspension rate. 



Sierra County Office of Education 
2017-2018 Budget Narrative 

Presented June 13, 2017 
 
 

 
 
 

 

LCFF Sources; 
$807,673 ; 41%

Federal ; 162,340; 
8%

Other State; 
654,087; 34%

Other Local; 
306,293; 16%

Fund 16 ‐ Transfer In; 
13,360; 1%

Total Resources $1,930,393

LCFF Sources

Federal

Other State

Other Local

Fund 16 ‐
Transfer In

Certificated; 
437,973; 23%

Classified; 382,141; 
20%Benefits; 380,668; 

20%

Books & Supplies; 
69,135; 4%

Services & 
Operating; 583,250; 

30%

Capital Outlay; 
38,867; 2%

Outgo to District; 
24,428 ; 1%

Total Expenses  $1,916,462

Certificated

Classified

Benefits

Books & Supplies

Services & Operating

Capital Outlay

Outgo to District



    

2017-2018 Budget 
Page 2 of 3 

 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Projected Ending Fund Balance 
2013-14 $2,061,912 actuals 
2014-15 $2,305,842 actuals 
2015-16 $2,694,339 actuals 
2016-17 $2,661,031 projected 
2017-18 $2,688,322 projected 

 
Personnel  FTE  
Certificated  3.50   
Superintendent    .15 
Administrator  1.00 
Psychologist (SpEd)   .50 
Classified  5.56 
Confidential  3.00 
 
Direct Services Contracted to provide special education services  
Speech 
Occupational Therapy 
Adapted P.E. 
Public Nurse 

 
Planning Factor 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

COLA (Department of Finance - DOF) 1.56% 2.15% 2.35% 2.57% 

STRS Employer Statutory Rates 14.43% 16.28% 18.13% 19.10% 

PERS Employer Projected Rates 15.531% 18.1% 20.8% 23.8% 

Lottery – Unrestricted per ADA $144 $144 $144 $144 

Lottery – Prop. 20 per ADA $45 $45 $45 $45 

 
 
Comments 
 

1. COLA of 1.56% on state and local share only of Special Education, Child Nutrition, Foster Youth, 

Preschool, American Indian Education Centers/American Indian Early Childhood Education 

2. Retroactive 2.5% salary increase from 2016/17 negotiations for certificated & classified 

employees included in 2017/18 budget. 

3. Increase health benefit for classified employees to $17,536.50  

4. PERS rate increase from  13.888% to 15.531% 

Fiscal Year Amount 
2013-14 actuals 87,389 
2014-15 actuals 243,930 
2015-16 actuals 388,497 
2016-17 projected (33,308) 
2017-18 projected 27,291 



    

2017-2018 Budget 
Page 3 of 3 

5. STRS rate increase from 12.58% to 14.43% 

6. Reimburse Sierra‐Plumas JUSD to provide foster youth, business, curriculum, and technology 

services 

7. Secure Rural Schools and Community Act has not been reauthorized, but the budget includes 

$13,860. 

8. Lottery funding at $144/unrestricted and $45/restricted per ADA 

9. Positive Certification 

10. Projected ending cash balance: $2,688,322 

 
 
 

 

 
 



Reviewed By:

$:
%:

Year: 16/17 17/18 Pos (Neg) % 16/17 17/18 Pos (Neg) % 16/17 17/18 Pos (Neg) %
Period: Est Actuals Budget Difference Change Est Actuals Budget Difference Change Est Actuals Budget Difference Change

Revenues
Revenue Limit Funding 8010-8099 795,320        807,673        12,353         1.55% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 795,320        807,673        12,353         1.55%
Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 162,340        162,340        -                   0.00% 162,340        162,340        -                   0.00%
State Revenues 8300-8599 2,249            2,964            715              31.79% 785,882        651,123        (134,759)      -17.15% 788,131        654,087        (134,044)      -17.01%
Local Revenues 8600-8799 301,793        301,793        -                   0.00% 4,500            4,500            -                   0.00% 306,293        306,293        -                   0.00%

Total Revenues 1,099,362     1,112,430     13,068          1.19% 952,722        817,963        (134,759)       -14.14% 2,052,084     1,930,393     (121,691)       -5.93%

Expenditures
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 174,843        170,708        (4,135)          -2.36% 314,124        267,265        (46,859)        -14.92% 488,967        437,973        (50,994)        -10.43%
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 237,159        242,939        5,780           2.44% 106,859        139,202        32,343         30.27% 344,018        382,141        38,123         11.08%
Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 232,590        193,162        (39,428)        -16.95% 177,197        187,506        10,309         5.82% 409,787        380,668        (29,119)        -7.11%
Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 24,316          16,377          (7,939)          -32.65% 54,011          52,758          (1,253)          -2.32% 78,327          69,135          (9,192)          -11.74%
Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 358,618        357,595        (1,023)          -0.29% 310,575        225,655        (84,920)        -27.34% 669,193        583,250        (85,943)        -12.84%
Capital Outlay 6000-6599 20,000          20,000          -                   0.00% 64,032          18,867          (45,165)        -70.54% 84,032          38,867          (45,165)        -53.75%
Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428          24,428          -                   0.00% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 24,428          24,428          -                   0.00%
Other Outgo 7300-7399 (25,533)         (9,571)          15,962         -62.52% 25,533          9,571            (15,962)        -62.52% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!

Total Expenditures 1,046,421     1,015,638     (30,783)         -2.94% 1,052,331     900,824        (151,507)       -14.40% 2,098,752     1,916,462     (182,290)       -8.69%

Rev less Exp 52,941          96,792          43,851          82.83% (99,609)         (82,861)         16,748          -16.81% (46,668)         13,931          60,599          -129.85%

Other Sources/Uses
Transfers In 8910-8979 13,360          13,360          -                   0.00% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 13,360          13,360          -                   0.00%
Contributions 8980-8999 (42,626)         (82,861)         (40,235)        94.39% 42,626          82,861          40,235         94.39% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!
Transfers Out 7610-7699 -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!

Total Other Sources (29,266)         (69,501)         (40,235)         137.48% 42,626          82,861          40,235          94.39% 13,360          13,360          -                   0.00%

Change in Fund Bal 23,675         27,291         3,616           15.27% (56,983)        -                  56,983         -100.00% (33,308)        27,291         60,599         -181.94%

Beg Fund Bal 2,612,781     2,636,456     23,675          0.91% 81,557          24,574          (56,983)         -69.87% 2,694,338     2,661,030     (33,308)         -1.24%
Adjustments -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0!
Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,612,781     2,636,456     23,675          0.91% 81,557          24,574          (56,983)         -69.87% 2,694,338     2,661,030     (33,308)         -1.24%

End Fund Bal 2,636,456     2,663,747     27,291          1.04% 24,574          24,574          -                   0.00% 2,661,030     2,688,321     27,291          1.03%
Non Spendable 500              500              500              500              
Restricted  -                   -                   #DIV/0! 24,574          24,574          -                   0.00% 24,574          24,574          -                   0.00%
Comitted 118,735        118,735        -                   0.00% -                   #DIV/0! 118,735        118,735        -                   0.00%
Assigned -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 15 -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!
REU 208,560        216,180        208,560        216,180        

Unassigned 2,308,661     2,328,332    27,291         1.18% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 2,308,661     2,328,332    27,291         1.18%

Sierra County Office of Education
2017/18 June Budget

Gen Fund Budget Comparison Worksheet
Materiality Threshold

Unrestricted Restricted Total



Sierra County Office of Education
2017/18 June Budget

$: 0
%: 0%

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined

A B C D E F G H I
Revenues

Revenue Limit Funding 8010-8099 807,673        -            807,673          819,996       -             819,996       819,996       -               819,996        
Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -               162,340     162,340          -              162,340      162,340       -               162,340       162,340        
State Revenues 8300-8599 2,964            651,123     654,087          2,964           651,730      654,694       2,964           652,378       655,342        
Local Revenues 8600-8799 301,793        4,500         306,293          315,768       4,500         320,268       328,603       4,500           333,103        
Transfers In 8910-8979 13,360          -            13,360           13,360         -             13,360         13,360         -               13,360          
Contributions 8980-8999 (82,861)         82,861       -                 (100,666)      100,666      -               (102,863)      102,863       -               

Total Revenues 1,042,929     900,824     1,943,753       1,051,422    919,236      1,970,658     1,062,060     922,081       1,984,141     
Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 170,708        267,265     437,973          178,200       293,466      471,666       182,171       295,916       478,087        
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 242,939        139,202     382,141          257,514       165,809      423,323       262,729       166,740       429,469        
Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 193,162        187,506     380,668          197,144       216,930      414,074       199,260       217,601       416,861        
Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 16,377          52,758       69,135           1,211           27,897       29,108         1,211           28,139         29,350          
Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 357,595        225,655     583,250          372,468       143,225      515,693       378,688       142,132       520,820        
Capital Outlay 6000-6599 20,000          18,867       38,867           -              14,867       14,867         -               14,867         14,867          
Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428          -            24,428           15,789         -             15,789         13,815         -               13,815          
Other Outgo 7300-7399 (9,571)           9,571         -                 9,918           8,978         18,896         10,679         9,469           20,148          
Transfers Out 7600-7629 -               -            -                 -              -             -               -               -               -               

Total Expenditures 1,015,638     900,824     1,916,462       1,032,244    871,172      1,903,416     1,048,553     874,864       1,923,417     

Rev less Exp 27,291          -            27,291           19,178         48,064       67,242         13,507         47,217         60,724          

Change in Fund Bal 27,291         -            27,291           19,178         48,064       67,242         13,507         47,217         60,724         

Beg Fund Bal 2,636,456     24,575       2,661,031       2,663,747    24,575       2,688,322     2,682,925     72,639         2,755,564     
Adjustments -               -            -                 -             -               -               -               
Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,636,456     24,575       2,661,031       2,663,747    24,575       2,688,322     2,682,925     72,639         2,755,564     

End Fund Bal 2,663,747     24,575       2,688,322       2,682,925    72,639       2,755,564     2,696,432     119,856       2,816,288     
Non Spendable 500              -            500                500              -             500              500              -               500              
Restricted  -               24,575       24,575           72,639       72,639         119,856       119,856        
Comitted 118,735        -            118,735          118,735       -             118,735       118,735       -               118,735        
Assigned -               -            -                 -             -               -               -               
REU 216,180        -            216,180          216,180       -             216,180       216,180       -               216,180        

Unassigned 2,328,332    -            2,328,332      2,347,510    -            2,347,510    2,361,017    -              2,361,017     

Budget MYP MYP

Multi Year Projection
Materiality Threshold

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20











































































































































































Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 1 of 11

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified

Not 

Currentl

y

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

210 Family training, counseling, and home visits (ages 0–2 only): This 

service includes: services provided by social workers, psychologists, or other 

qualified personnel to assist the family in understanding the special needs of 

the child and enhancing the child’s development. Note: Services provided by 

specialists (such as medical services, nursing services, occupational therapy, 

and physical therapy) for a specific function should be coded under the 

appropriate service category, even if the services were delivered in the 

home

X

34 Code of Federal 
Regulations  (CFR ) 

sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

220 Medical services (for evaluation only) (ages 0–2 only): Services provided 

by a licensed physician to determine a child’s developmental status and need 

for early intervention services.

X
34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

230 Nutrition services (ages 0–2 only): These services include conducting 

assessments in: nutritional history and dietary intake; anthropometric, 

biochemical, and clinical variables; feeding skills and feeding problems; and 

food habits and food preferences.

X
34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

240 Service coordination (ages 0–2 only) 
X

34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

250 Special instruction (ages 0–2 only): Special instruction includes: the design 

of learning environments and activities that promote the child’s acquisition of 

skills in a variety of developmental areas, including cognitive processes and 

social interaction; curriculum planning, including the planned interaction of 

personnel, materials, and time and space, that leads to achieving the 

outcomes in the child’s individualized family service plan (IFSP); providing 

families with information, skills, and support related to enhancing the skill 

development of the child; and working with the child to enhance the child’s 

development.

X
34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

California Department of Education

Form ASP-01a (rev Feb 2017)                              California Special Education Management Information 

System

                                                                                                    Service Descriptions
Special Education Local Plan Area:Sierra County Office of Education

Special Education Division



Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 2 of 11

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified

Not 

Currentl

y

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

260 Special education aide in regular development class, childcare center, 

or family childcare home (ages 0–2 only) 
X

34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

270 Respite care services (ages 0–2 only): Through the IFSP process, short-

term care given in-home or out-of-home, which temporarily relieves families 

of the ongoing responsibility for specialized care for child with a disability.  

(Note: only for infants and toddlers from birth through 2, but under 3.)

X
34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

330 Specialized academic instruction: Adapting, as appropriate to the needs of 

the child with a disability, the content, methodology, or delivery of instruction 

to ensure access of the child to the general curriculum, so that he or she can 

meet the educational standards within the jurisdiction of the public agency 

that apply to all children. 

X
34 CFR  Section 

300.39(b)(3)

340 Intensive individual instruction: IEP Team determination that student 

requires additional support for all or part of the day to meet his or her IEP 

goals.

X

30 California Education 
Code (EC ) Section 

56364

350 Individual and small group instruction: Instruction delivered one-to-one or 

in a small group as specified in an IEP enabling the individual(s) to 

participate effectively in the total school program. X

5 California Code of 
Regulations  (CCR ) 

Section 3051;

30 EC  Section 56441.2

415 Language and speech: Language and speech services provide remedial 

intervention for eligible individuals with difficulty understanding or using 

spoken language. The difficulty may result from problems with articulation 

(excluding abnormal swallowing patterns, if that is the sole assessed 

disability); abnormal voice quality, pitch, or loudness; fluency; hearing loss; or 

the acquisition, comprehension, or expression of spoken language. 

Language deficits or speech patterns resulting from unfamiliarity with the 

English language and from environmental, economic or cultural factors are 

not included. Services include specialized instruction and services: 

monitoring, reviewing, and consultation, and may be direct or indirect, 

including the use of a speech consultant.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.1;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(15), 

300.8 (c)(11)



Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 3 of 11

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified

Not 

Currentl

y

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

425 Adapted physical education: Direct physical education services provided by 

an adapted physical education specialist to pupils who have needs that 

cannot be adequately satisfied in other physical education programs as 

indicated by assessment and evaluation of motor skills performance and 

other areas of need. It may include individually designed developmental 

activities, games, sports, and rhythms, for strength development and fitness 

suited to the capabilities, limitations, and interests of individual students with 

disabilities who may not safely, successfully, or meaningfully engage in 

unrestricted participation in the vigorous activities of the general or modified 

physical education program. 

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.5;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections

300.108, 300.39 (b)(2)

435 Health and nursing–specialized physical health care services: 

Specialized physical health care services means those health services 

prescribed by the child’s licensed physician and surgeon, requiring medically 

related training of the individual who performs the services and which are 

necessary during the school day to enable the child to attend school (5 CCR 

Section 3051.12[b]). Specialized physical health care services include but are 

not limited to suctioning, oxygen administration, catheterization, nebulizer 

treatments, insulin administration, and glucose testing.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.12;

30 EC  sections 56363, 

49423.5(d)

34 CFR  Section 

300.107;

436 Health and nursing–other services: This includes services that are 

provided to individuals with exceptional needs by a qualified individual 

pursuant to an IEP when a student has health problems which require 

nursing intervention beyond basic school health services. Services include 

managing the health problem, consulting with staff, group and individual 

counseling, making appropriate referrals, and maintaining communication 

with agencies and health care providers. These services do not include any 

physician supervised or specialized health care service. IEP required health 

and nursing services are expected to supplement the regular health services 

program. 

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.12;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 

300.107 



Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 4 of 11

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified

Not 

Currentl

y

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

445 Assistive technology services: Any specialized training or technical support 

for the incorporation of assistive devices, adapted computer technology, or 

specialized media with the educational programs to improve access for 

students. The term includes a functional analysis of the student's needs for 

assistive technology; selecting, designing, fitting, customizing, or repairing 

appropriate devices; coordinating services with assistive technology devices; 

training or technical assistance for students with a disability, the student's 

family, individuals providing education or rehabilitation services, and 

employers. 

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.16;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections 

300.6, 300.105

450 Occupational therapy: Occupational Therapy (OT) includes services to 

improve student's educational performance, postural stability, self-help 

abilities, sensory processing and organization, environmental adaptation and 

use of assistive devices, motor planning and coordination, visual perception 

and integration, social and play abilities, and fine motor abilities. Both direct 

and indirect services may be provided within the classroom, other 

educational settings, or the home, in groups or individually, and may include 

therapeutic techniques to develop abilities, adaptations to the student's 

environment or curriculum, and consultation and collaboration with other staff 

and parents. Services are provided, pursuant to an IEP, by a qualified 

occupational therapist registered with the American Occupational Therapy 

Certification Board. 

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.6;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34 (c)(6)



Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 5 of 11

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified

Not 

Currentl

y

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

460 Physical therapy: These services are provided, pursuant to an IEP, by a 

registered physical therapist, or physical therapist assistant, when 

assessment shows a discrepancy between gross motor performance and 

other educational skills. Physical therapy includes, but is not limited to, motor 

control and coordination, posture and balance, self-help, functional mobility, 

accessibility and use of assistive devices. Services may be provided within 

the classroom, other educational settings or in the home, and may occur in 

groups or individually. These services may include adaptations to the 

student's environment and curriculum, selected therapeutic techniques and 

activities, and consultation and collaborative interventions with staff and 

parents.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.6;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section

 300.34 (c)(9); California 

Business and 
Professions Code 

(B&PC ) Chapter 5.7

sections 2600–2696;

Government Code 
(GC ) Interagency 

Agreement 

Chapter 26.5 

Section 7575(a)(2)

510 Individual counseling: One-to-one counseling, provided by a qualified 

individual pursuant to an IEP. Counseling may focus on such student aspects 

as education, career, personal, or be with parents or staff members on 

learning problems or guidance programs for students. Individual counseling 

is expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.9;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34(c)(2)



Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 6 of 11

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified

Not 

Currentl

y

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

515 Counseling and guidance: Counseling in a group setting, provided by a 

qualified individual pursuant to an IEP. Group counseling is typically social 

skills development, but may focus on such student aspects as education, 

career, personal, or be with parents or staff members on learning problems 

or guidance programs for students. IEP required group counseling is 

expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program. 

Guidance services include interpersonal, intrapersonal, or family 

interventions, performed in an individual or group setting by a qualified 

individual pursuant to an IEP. Specific programs include social skills 

development, self-esteem building, parent training, and assistance to special 

education students supervised by staff credentialed to serve special 

education students. These services are expected to supplement the regular 

guidance and counseling program. 

X

34 CFR sections 

300.24.(b)(2), 300.306;

5 CCR  Section 3051.9

520 Parent counseling: Individual or group counseling provided by a qualified 

individual pursuant to an IEP to assist the parent(s) of special education 

students in better understanding and meeting their child's needs and may 

include parenting skills or other pertinent issues. IEP required parent 

counseling is expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling 

program. 

X

5 CCR Section 3051.11;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34(c)(8)

525 Social work services: Social work services, provided by a qualified 

individual pursuant to an IEP, include, but are not limited to, preparing a 

social or developmental history of a child with a disability, group and 

individual counseling with the child and family, working with those problems 

in a child's living situation (home, school, and community) that affect the 

child's adjustment in school, and mobilizing school and community resources 

to enable the child to learn as effectively as possible in his or her educational 

program. Social work services are expected to supplement the regular 

guidance and counseling program. 

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.13;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34(c)(14)



Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 7 of 11

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified

Not 

Currentl

y

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

530 Psychological services: These services, provided by a credentialed or 

licensed psychologist pursuant to an IEP, include interpreting assessment 

results for parents and staff in implementing the IEP, obtaining and 

interpreting information about child behavior and conditions related to 

learning, and planning programs of individual and group counseling and 

guidance services for children and parents. These services may include 

consulting with other staff in planning school programs to meet the special 

needs of children as indicated in the IEP. IEP required psychological services 

are expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program. 

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.10; 

34 CFR  Section 

300.34 (c)(10)

535 Behavior intervention services: A systematic implementation of procedures 

designed to promote lasting, positive changes in the student's behavior 

resulting in greater access to a variety of community settings, social contacts, 

public events, and placement in the least restrictive environment. 

X

 5 CCR  Section 

3001(d);

34 CFR  Section

300.34 (c)(10)

540 Day treatment services: Structured education, training, and support 

services to address the student’s mental health needs. X

Health & Safety Code, 

Div.2, Chap.3, Article 1, 

Section 1502(a)

545 Residential treatment services: A 24-hour, out-of-home placement that 

provides intensive therapeutic services to support the educational program. 
X

Welfare and Institutions 

Code, 

Part 2, Chapter 2.5, 

Art. 1, Section 5671

610 Specialized services for low incidence disabilities: Low incidence 

services are defined as those provided to the student population who have 

orthopedic impairment (OI), visual impairment (VI), who are deaf, hard of 

hearing (HH), or deaf-blind (DB). Typically, services are provided in 

education settings by an itinerant teacher or an itinerant teacher/specialist. 

Consultation is provided to the teacher, staff, and parents as needed. These 

services must be clearly written in the student's IEP, including frequency and 

duration of the services to the student. 

X

5 CCR  sections 

3051.16, 3051.18;

34 CFR  Section 300.34



Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 8 of 11

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified

Not 

Currentl

y

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

710 Specialized deaf and hard of hearing services: These services include 

speech therapy, speech reading, auditory training, and/or instruction in the 

student's mode of communication. Rehabilitative and educational services; 

adapting curricula, methods, and the learning environment; and special 

consultation to students, parents, teachers, and other school personnel.

X

5 CCR  sections

3051.16, 3051.18;

34 CFR  Section 300.34

715 Interpreter services: Sign language interpretation of spoken language to 

individuals, whose communication is normally sign language, by a qualified 

sign language interpreter.  This includes conveying information through the 

sign system of the student or consumer and tutoring students regarding class 

content through the sign system of the student.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.16;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34 (c)(4)

720 Audiological services: These services include measurements of acuity, 

monitoring amplification, and frequency modulation system use. Consultation 

services with teachers, parents, or speech pathologists must be identified in 

the IEP as to reason, frequency, and duration of contact; infrequent contact 

is considered assistance and would not be included. 

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.2;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34 (c)(1)

725 Specialized vision services: This is a broad category of services provided 

to students with visual impairments. It includes assessment of functional 

vision; curriculum modifications necessary to meet the student's educational 

needs including Braille, large type, and aural media; instruction in areas of 

need; concept development and academic skills; communication skills 

including alternative modes of reading and writing; and social, emotional, 

career, vocational, and independent living skills. It may include coordination 

of other personnel providing services to the students such as transcribers, 

readers, counselors, orientation and mobility specialists, career/vocational 

staff, and others, and collaboration with the student's classroom teacher. 

X
5 CCR  Section 3030(d);

30 EC  Section 56364.1



Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 9 of 11

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified

Not 

Currentl

y

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

730 Orientation and mobility: Students with identified visual impairments are 

trained in body awareness and to understand how to move. Students are 

trained to develop skills to enable them to travel safely and independently 

around the school and in the community. It may include consultation services 

to parents regarding their children requiring such services according to an 

IEP.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.3;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 300.34 

(c)(7)

735 Braille transcription: Any transcription services to convert materials from 

print to Braille. It may include textbooks, tests, worksheets, or anything 

necessary for instruction. The transcriber should be qualified in English 

Braille as well as Nemeth Code (mathematics) and be certified by 

appropriate agency.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.16;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 300.8 

(c)(13)

740 Specialized orthopedic services: Specially designed instruction related to 

the unique needs of students with orthopedic disabilities, including 

specialized materials and equipment. X

5 CCR  sections 

3030(e), 3051.16;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 300.8 

(c)(8)

745 Reading services X 5 CCR  Section 3051.16

750 Note taking services: Any specialized assistance given to the student for 

the purpose of taking notes when the student is unable to do so 

independently. This may include, but is not limited to, copies of notes taken 

by another student or transcription of tape-recorded information from a class 

or aide designated to take notes. This does not include instruction in the 

process of learning how to take notes.

X 5 CCR Section 3051.16

755 Transcription services: Any transcription service to convert materials from 

print to a mode of communication suitable for the student. This may also 

include dictation services as it may pertain to textbooks, tests, worksheets, or 

anything necessary for instruction.

X 5 CCR  Section 3051.16



Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 10 of 11

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified

Not 

Currentl

y

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

760 Recreation services, includes therapeutic recreation: Therapeutic 

recreation and specialized instructional programs designed to assist pupils to 

become as independent as possible in leisure activities, and when possible 

and appropriate, facilitate the pupil's integration into general recreation 

programs.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.15; 

34 CFR  Section 300.34 

(c)(11)

820 College awareness: College awareness is the result of acts that promote 

and increase student learning about higher education opportunities, 

information, and options that are available including, but not limited to, career 

planning, course prerequisites, admission eligibility, and financial aid.

X
34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

830 Vocational assessment, counseling, guidance, and career assessment: 

Organized educational programs that are directly related to the preparation of 

individuals for paid or unpaid employment, and may include provision for 

work experience, job coaching, development and/or placement, and 

situational assessment. This includes career counseling to assist a student in 

assessing his/her aptitudes, abilities, and interests in order to make realistic 

career decisions. 

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

840 Career awareness: Transition services include a provision for self-advocacy, 

career planning, and career guidance. This also emphasizes the need for 

coordination between these provisions and the Perkins Act to ensure that 

students with disabilities in middle schools will be able to access vocational 

education funds. 

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

850 Work experience education: Work experience education means organized 

educational programs that are directly related to the preparation of individuals 

for paid or unpaid employment, or for additional preparation for a career 

requiring other than a baccalaureate or advanced degree.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

855 Job Coaching: Job coaching is a service that provides assistance and 

guidance to an employee who may be experiencing difficulty with one or 

more aspects of the daily job tasks and functions. The service is provided by 

a job coach who is highly successful, skilled and trained on the job who can 

determine how the employee that is experiencing difficulty learns best and 

formulate a training plan to improve job performance.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43



Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 11 of 11

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified

Not 

Currentl

y

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

860 Mentoring: Mentoring is a sustained coaching relationship between a 

student and teacher through ongoing involvement. The mentor offers 

support, guidance, encouragement and assistance as the learner encounters 

challenges with respect to a particular area such as acquisition of job skills. 

Mentoring can be either formal, as in planned, structured instruction, or 

informal that occurs naturally through friendship, counseling, and collegiality 

in a casual, unplanned way.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

865 Agency linkages (referral and placement): Service coordination and case 

management that facilitates the linkage of individualized education programs 

under this part and individualized family service plans under part C with 

individualized service plans under multiple Federal and State programs, such 

as title I of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (vocational rehabilitation), title XIX 

of the Social Security Act (Medicaid), and title XVI of the Social Security Act 

(supplemental security income).

X

30 EC  Section 56341.5 

(f);

 34 CFR  Section 

300.344 (3)(b)

870 Travel training (includes mobility training)

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.3;

34 CFR  sections 300.39 

(c)(7)

890 Other transition services: These services may include program 

coordination, case management and meetings, and crafting linkages 

between schools and between schools and postsecondary agencies.

X

900** Other special education/related services: Any other specialized service 

required for a student with a disability to receive educational benefit.
X

*   B&PC –Business and Proessional Codes
    CCR –California Code of Regulations
    CFR –Code of Federal Regulations
    EC –Education Code
    GC –Government Code
** Use of CASEMIS Code 900 necessitates further explanation. Please list the 

    other special education/related services to be provided as Code 900 on the  

    form ASP-01b: Customized Service Descriptions.  



Page _______ of _______ 

California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division 
ASP-02a (rev Feb 2017) 

 
Special Education Local Plan Area:    Local Educational Agency (LEA): 

 

Annual Service Plan (001) 

Location 
List the site name and type of 
facility providing services to 

students enrolled in the LEA. 

Services Provided at this Location  
List the California Special Education Management 

Information System (CASEMIS) code associated with each 
service that is provided at the location listed in the left-

hand column. 

Site Name 
Type 

Of 
Facility 

CASEMIS Service Codes 
(Use of Code 900 requires further explanation) 

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

 
 Use these codes to identify the type of facility providing services to students ages 6–22:   

10–Public Day School 11–Public Residential School 15–Special Education Center/Facility 

19–Other Public School/Facilities 20–Continuation School 
22–Alternative Work Education Center/  
      Work Study Program 

24–Independent Study 31–Community School 
55–Charter School (operated by an LEA/ 
      District/County Office of Education) 

56–Charter School (operating as an LEA)   

 



 

Page _1___ of  ___1__ 

California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division 
ASP–02a 002 (rev Feb 2017) 

 
Special Education Local Plan Area:  Sierra County Office of Education  
Local Educational Agency (LEA):  Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

 
Other Facilities (002) 

Location  
List the site name and type of facility 

providing services to students enrolled 
in the LEA. 

Services Provided at this Location  
List the California Special Education Information 

System (CASEMIS) code associated with each service 
that is provided at the location listed in the left-hand 

column. 

Site Name 
Type 

of 
Facility 

CASEMIS Service Codes 
(Use of Code 900 requires further explanation) 

None          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

 
Use these codes to identify the type of facility providing services to students ages 6–22: 

30–Juvenile Court School 32–Correctional Institution or  
Incarceration Facility  

40–Home Instruction 

45–Hospital Facility 50–Community College 51–Adult Education Program 

70–Nonpublic Day School 71/72–Nonpublic Residential School 79–Nonpublic Agency 



 

Page _1___ of  ___1__ 

 



 
 

 
Page __1__  of  __1___ 

California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division 
ASP–02a 003 (rev Feb 2017) 

 
Special Education Local Plan Area:  Sierra County Office of Education                      
Local Educational Agency (LEA):  Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

  
Infant Services (003) 

Location  
List the site name and type of facility 

providing services to students enrolled 
in the LEA. 

Services Provided at this Location 
List the California Special Education Management 

Information System (CASEMIS) code associated with 
each service that is provided at the location listed in the 

left-hand column. 

Site Name  
Type 

of 
Facility 

CASEMIS Service Codes 
(Use of Code 900 requires further explanation) 

None          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

 
Use these codes to identify the type of facility where Infant Services (ages 0–3) are provided: 

00–No School (Ages 0–5 only) 10–Public Day School 

11–Public Residential School 19–Other Public School/Facilities 

40–Home 45–Hospital Facility 

62–Child Development or Child Care Facility 65–Extended Day Care 

 








	01_06_13_2017_SCOE_Agenda
	02_Services
	2018_01C_JHardeman_Nurse
	2018_03C_McKurtis_Speech
	SCOE Jane Lee_Agreement_2018-06C
	SCOE Mary Lowe Agreement_2018-05C

	03_2018-04C_LCOE_Rainbow
	04_SCOE-Approved Days
	05_SCOE May2017 ObjSumm
	Account Object Summary-Balance
	1
	1
	01
	
	
	
	5
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000





	16
	
	
	
	5
	7000









	06_SecondInterimCert
	7_Health Benefits_Board
	BB9250_Remuneration, Reimbursement
	13-001 Health Benefits Board Medicare (2)
	13-001 Health Benefits Board Medicare

	08_5_09_2017_SCOE_Minutes
	09_SCOE May2017 Checks
	Board Report
	1
	00014645
	00014646
	00014647
	00014648
	00014649
	00014650
	00014651
	00014652
	00014653
	00014654
	00014655
	00014656
	00014657
	00014658
	00014659
	00014660
	00014661
	00014662
	00014663
	00014664
	00014665
	00014666
	00014667
	00014668
	00014669
	00014670
	00014671

	2
	01
	76



	10_Draft 2017-18 LCAP
	11_SCOE 2017-2018 Budget,Comp,MYP,Narrative
	SCOE 2017-2018 Budget,Comp,MYP,Narrative
	SCOE 2017-2018 Budget Narrative
	17.18 SCOE Budget Comparison
	1718 SCOE MYP

	17.18 SCOE Budget
	17.18 SCOE SACS Budget Part 1
	17.18 SCOE SACS Budget Part 2
	17.18 SCOE SACS Budget Part 3


	12_SELPA 17-18_PublicHearing
	13_SELPA_17-18 Plan and Budget
	asp01a descriptors 2017
	Service Descriptions ASP-01a

	asp02a001
	asp02a002 other facilities 2017
	asp02a003 infant services 2017
	SELPA_17-18 Signed ABP and Certification




